Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited

A Govt. of India (Ministry of Railways) Enterprises

+| Regd. Office & Corp. Office: §" Floor, Pragati Maidan Metro Station Building
- Complex, New Delhi -110001.




CONTENTS

S.No. 'Topics Page No.
1. Notice & Proxy Form 113
2, Director’'s Report 14-43
3. The Comments of the Auditors and Management's Reply thereto (Annexure “A”) 44
4, The Comments of the Secretarial Auditor and Management's Reply thereto. 45

{Annexure “B"}.
5, Comments of the Comptrofler & Auditor General of India. (Annexure “C"}. 46-47
6. A report of Corporate Social Responsibiﬁfy (Annexure “D”). 48-52
1. A “Corporate Govemance Report placed at (Annexure “E”) 53-71
8. Declaration by Managing Director {Annexure “E 17} 72
9. Ce'ﬂiﬁcation of financial Statements by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 73
Officer. (Annexure “E2"). 7
10. Certificate of compliance of Corporate Governance obtained from practicing Company 74
Secretary is placed at (Annexure “E3”).
11. | A*“Management Discussion and Analysis Report” is placed at (Annexure “F”). 75-89
12.. | A Secretarial Audit Report from a Company Secretary in Practice (Annexure “G”). 80-94
13. An extract of Annual Retum in the prescribed form MGT-9 is appendéd to the Board 95-102
| Report as {(Annexure “H”)
14. Financial Statements 103-129
15. Auditor's Report 130-136




NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that 9% Annual General Meeting of the Members of Dedicated Freight
Corridor Corporation of india Limited (CIN : U60232DL2006G01155068) will be held on Monday, 21st
day of September 2015 at 12:30 Hrs. in Board Room, 5% Floor, Pragati Maidan Metro Station

Buiiding Complex, New Delhi-110001 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statemenis of the Company for the year ended
315t Mareh, 2015, together with the Report of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon and comments

of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

2. To take note of the appointment of the Statutory Auditor of the Company appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of india for the year 2015-16 by adopting the following
resolution.

‘Resolved that Members be and hereby took note of appointment of M/s Baweja & Kaul, Chartered

Accountants as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2015-2016 by the Comptroller

and Auditor General of India, on a remuneration as may be decided, by the Board of Directors on the

recommendation of the Audit Commitiee”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
3. To consider and if thought fit, {o pass with or without modification, the following

resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152(2), 196 and other applicable provisions,
it any, of the Companies Act 2013 read with the relevant Ardicies of Articles of Association of the
Company, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment made by the
President of India vide Railway Board's letter No. 2014/E{O}1/40/9 dated 14.10.2014, of 5h. Adash
Sharma, IRSE, CAO/South Western Railway, as {Managing Director)/ DFCCIL on immediale
absorption basis for a period of five vears w.e f. 20.10.2014 [FN).



‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Director Finance/ Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized
to do alf such acts, deeds and things and fo sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient

and incidental thereto to give effect to this resoiution.”

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following

resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152(2), 161 196 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 read with the relevant Articles of Articles of Association
of the Company, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment made
by the President of india vide Railway Board letter No 2013/E(O)/40/4 dated 27.10.2014, of
Sh. D.S. Rana, CPM/DFCCIL as Director (Infrastructure) on the Board of DFCCIL on immediate

absorption basis for a period of five years wel 27102014 {FN}.

‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Director Finance/ Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized
to do ali such acts, deeds and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient

and incidental thereto to give effect to this resolution.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as Ordinary Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the provisions of Section 152({2), 196 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act 2013 read with the relevant Articles of Arlicles of Association of the
Company, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment made by the
President of India vide Railway Board letter No 2009/infra/6/2 dated 03.02.2015, {ﬁm
Chairman Railway Board as Part Time Chairman on the Board of DFCCIL with immediate effect vice
Sh. Arunendra Kumar, Ex Chairman Railway Board till he hold the post of Chairman, Railway Board

or further orders whichever is earlier,

‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Director Finance/ Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized
to do all such acts, deeds and things and fo sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient

and incidental thereto to give effect fo this resolution.”




Place: New Delhi By Order of the Board

oy B

Meefid Kapoor
Company Secretary
Note:

1) The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 {Act) in
respect of the business under ltem Nos. 3 -5 of the Notice, are annexed hereto.

2} A Member entitled fo attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is entitied to appoint
a proxy to attend and vole instead of himself and the proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the
Company's Registered Office, duly completed and signed, not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS
before the meeting.

3) The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2014-15 is being sent by electronic mode
to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company, unless any Member
has requested for a physical copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their a-mai

addresses, physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT 1O
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,

ITEM NO. 3
1} Section 152 {2} of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that "Save as otherwise expressly

provided in this Act, every director shall be appointed by the company in general mesting.

2} Adicle 81 of Articles of Association of the Company ( Appointment of Chairman, Chairman-
cum-Managing Director, Directors and their terms of Office } provides — Article 81-
{1} The President shall have powers fo appoint:
{a) Fuil time Chairman or, Part time Chairman, full ime Managing Director(s) or a full
time Chairman-cum-Managing Director and other full time Directors.
(b} The Directors representing the Government of India and / or any State Government;
and
{c} Other Directors including independent Directors in consultation with the Chairman.
The Directors appointed by the President shall hold office until removed by him or until their

resignation, retirement, death or otherwise.

3;  Section 195 deals with Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel- According to
section 196. {T) No company shall appoint or employ at the same time a managing director and
a manager.

(2} No company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its managing director, whole-time
director or manager for a term exceeding five years at a time:
Provided that no re-appointment shall be made earlier than one vear before the expiry of his
term.
(3) No company shall appoint or continue the employment of any person as managing director,
whole-time direcior or manager who —
(a) is below the age of twenly-one years or has attained the age of seventy years;
Provided that appointment of a person wha has attained the age of seventy years may be
made by passing a special resolution in which case the explanatory statement annexed to

the notice for such motion shall indicate the justification for appointing such persen;
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(b} 1s an undischarged insolvent or has at any time been adjudged as an insolvent;

{c) has at any time suspended payment to his creditors or makes, or has at any time made,
a composition with them; or

(d} has at any time been convicted by a court of an offence and sentenced for a period of
more than six months.

{4} Subject to the provisions of section 197 and Schedule V, a managing director, whole-
time director or manager shall be appointed and the terms and conditions of such
appointment and remuneration payable be approved by the Board of Directors at a meeting
which shait be subject to approval by a resoiution at the next general meeting of the company
and by the Central Government in case such appointment is at variance fo the conditions
specified in that Schedule:

Provided that a notice convening Board or general meeting for considering such appointment
shall include the terms and conditions of such appointment, remuneration payable and such
other matters inciuding interest, of a director or directors in such appointments, if any:
Provided further that a return in the prescribed form shall be filed within sixty days of such
appointment with the Registrar.

(8) Subiject to the provisions of this Act, where an appointment of a managing director,
whole-time director or manager is not approved by the company at a general meeting, any
act done by him before such approval shall not be deemed fo be invalid.

In exercise on the powers conferred by clauses (a) and (b} of sub-section{1) of section 462
and in pursuance of sub-section (2) of said section of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013)
and fo supersession of notifications issued under section 620 of the Companies Act, 1956 {1
of 1956}, except as respects things done or omitted to be done before such supersession,
the Central Government in the inferest of public hereby directs that certain provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, as specified in column (2} of the Table, shall not apply or shall apply
with such exceptions, modification and adaptations as spacified to column (3) of the Table,
to a Government company.{ Dt. 05.06.2015) Accordingly, DFCCIL being a Government
Company is exempled from the provisions of section 196 (2} 4 and 5 of the Act.

During the year 2014-2015, Vide Railway Board's letfer No. 2014/E{0)li/40/9 dated
14.10.2014, the President of India approved the appointment of Sh. Adesh Sharma, IRSE,




CAQ/South Western Railway, as (Managing Director)/ DFCCIL on immediate absorption
basis for a period of five years. He assumed the charge of MD/DFCCIL we.f 20.10.2014
(FN). A copy of the terms and conditioniof appointment attached herewith forms the part of

explanatory statement.

6) Interms of section 152{2), itis mandatory to take the appointments made by the President of

india for consent of the Sharehoiders.

No Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company andfor their relatives are concemed or

interested financially or otherwise in this item of business except the Managing Director.

ITEMNO. 4
1) Section 152 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that “Save as otherwise expressly provided

in this Act, every director shall be appointed by the company in general meeting.

2} Asticle 81 of Articles of Association of the Company ( Appointment of Chairman, Chairman-
cum-Managing Director, Directors and their terms of Office } provides - Article 81-
{1} The President shall have powers to appoint:
(a) Full time Chairman or, Part time Chairman, full ime Managing Director(s) or & full
time Chairman-cum-Managing Director and other full time Directors.
{b) The Directors representing the Government of india and / or any State Government;
and
{c} Other Directors including independent Directors in consultation with the Chairman,
The Directors appointed by the President shall hold office unfil removed by him or until their

resignation, refirement, death or otherwise.

3} Section 196 deals with Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel- According to
section 196. () No company shall appaint or employ at the same time a managing é%récter and
a manager.
{2) No company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as ifs managing director, whole-time

director or manager for a ferm exceeding five years at a time:




* Provided that no re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of his

term.

{3) No company shall appoint or continue the employment of any person as managing director,

whole-time director or manager who —
{a) is below the age of twenty-one years or has attained the age of seventy years:
Provided that appointment of a person who has attained the age of seventy years may be
made by passing a special resolution in which case the explanatory statement annexed to
the notice for such motion shall indicate the justification for appointing such person;
(b} is an undischarged insolvent or has at any time been adjudged as an insolvent;
(¢] has at any time suspended payment to his creditors or makes, or has at any time made,
a composition with them; or
(d) has at any time been convicted by a court of an offence and sentenced for a period of
more than six months.
{(4) Subject o the provisions of section 197 and Schedule V, a managing director, whole-
time director or manager shall be appointed and the terms and conditions of such
appointment and remuneration payable be approved by the Board of Directors at a meeting
which shall be subject to approval by a resolution at the next general meeting of the company
and by the Ceniral Government in case such appointment is at variance fo the conditions
specitied in that Schedule:
Provided that a notice convening Board or general meeting for considering such appointment
shall include the terms and conditions of such appointment, remuneration payable and such
other matters including interest, of a director or directors in such appointments, if any:
Provided further that a return in the prescribed form shall be filed within sixty days of such
appointment with the Registrar.
(&) Subject fo the provisions of this Act, where an appointment of a managing director,
whole-time director or manager is not approved by the company at a general meeting, any
act done by him before such approval shall not be deemed to be invalid.
In exercise on the powers conferred by clauses (a) and (b} of sub-section(1) of section 462
and in pursuance of sub-section {2} of said section of the Companies Act, 2013 {18 of 2013)
and to supersession of notifications issued under section 620 of the Companies Act, 1956 {1

of 1958), except as respects things done or omitted to be done before such supersession,



the Central Government in the interest of public hereby directs that certain provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, as specified in column (2) of the Table, shall not apply or shall apply
with such exceptions, modification and adaptations as specified o column (3) of the Table,
to a Government company { Di. 05.06.2015) Accordingly, DFCCIL being a Govermnment
Company is exempted from the provisions of section 196 (2) 4 and 5 of the Act.

5} During the year 2014-2015, vide Railway Board letter No 2013/E{O)11/40/4 dated 27.10.2014,
the President of india had approved the appointment of Sh. D.8. Rana, CPM/DFCCIL as
Director {Infrastructure) on the Board of DFCCIL on immediate absorption basis for a period
of five years. He assumed the charge of the post of Dirf Infrastructure, DFCCIL welf.
27.10.2014 {FN).

6)  Interms of section 1562(2), it is mandatory to take the appointments made by the President of

india for consent of the Sharehoiders.

No Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are concemed or

interested financially or otherwise in this item of business except the Director (Infrastructure).

ftem 5
1 Section 152 {2} of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that “Save as otherwise expressly

provided in this Act, every director shall be appointed by the company in general meeting.

2}  Article 81 of Articles of Assoclation of the Company { Appointment of Chairman, Chairman-
cum-Managing Director, Directors and their terms of Office } provides - Article 81-
{1} The President shall have powers to appoint:
(8) Full ime Chairman or, Part time Chairman, full time Managing Director{s) or a ful
time Chairman-cum-Managing Director and other fult time Directors.
{b} The Directors representing the Government of India and / or any State Government:
and
(c} Other Directors including independent Directors in consuitation with the Chairman.
The Directors appointed by the President shall hold office until removed by him or until their

resignation, retirement, death or otherwise.




Section 196 deals with Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel- According to
section 196. {7} No company shall appoint or employ at the same time a managing director and
a manager.
(2) No company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its managing director, whole-time
director or manager for a term exceeding five years at a time;
Provided that no re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of his
term.
{3) No company shali appoint or continue the employment of any person as managing director,
whole-time director or manager who ——
{a) s below the age of twenty-one years or has attained the age of seventy years:
Provided that appointment of a person who has attained the age of seventy years may be
made by passing a special resolution in which case the explanatory statement annexed to
the notice for stich motion shall indicate the justification for appointing such person;
(b} is an undischarged insolvent or has at any time been adjudged as an insolvent;
(¢) has at any time suspended payment to his credifors or makes, or has at any time made,
a composition with them; or
{d) has at any time been convicted by a court of an offence and sentenced for a period of
more than six months.
(4) Subject to the provisions of section 197 and Schedule V, a managing director, whole-
time director or manager shall be appointed and the ferms and conditions of such
appointment and remuneration payable be approved by the Board of Directors at a meeting
which shall be subject to approval by a resolution at the next general meeting of the company
and by the Central Government in case such appointment is at variance to the conditions
specified in that Scheduie:
Provided that a notice convening Board or general meeting for considering such appoiniment
shall include the terms and conditions of such appointment, remuneration payable and such
other matters including interest, of a director or directors in such appointments, if any:
Provided further that a return in the prescribed form shall be filed within sixty days of such

appointment with the Registrar,




(&} Subject to the provisions of this Act, where an appointment of a managing director,
whole-time director or manager Is not approved by the company at a general meeting, any
act done by him before such approval shail not be deemed to be invalid.

4)  Inexercise on the powers conferred by clauses (aj and (b} of sub-section{1) of section 462
and in pursuance of sub-section (2) of said section of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013)
and to supersession of notifications issued under section 620 of the Companies Act, 1956
(1 of 1956), except as respects things done or omitted o be done before such supersession,
the Central Government in the interest of public hereby directs that certain provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, as specified in column (2} of the Table, shall not apply or shall apply
with such exceptions, modification and adaptations as specified fo column (3) of the Table,
to a Government company.{ Dt. 05.06.2015) Accordingly, DFCCIL being a Government
Company is exempted from the provisions of section 196 (2} 4 and 5 of the Act.

5) During the year 2014-2015, Vide Railway Board letter No 2009/infra/6/2 dated 03.02.2015,
the President of india appointed Sh. AK. Mital, Chairman Railway Board as Part Time
Chairman on the Board of DFCCIL with immediate effect vice Sh. Arunendra Kumar,
Ex -Chairman Rallway Board till he hold the post of Chairman, Railway Board or further orders
whichever is eatrlier.

8) in terms of section 152(2), it is mandatory to take the appeintments made by the President

of India for consent of the Shareholders,

No Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are concered or

interested financially or otherwise in this item of business except Sh.A K Mital, Chairman/DFCCIL.




PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN:
Name of the Member(s):

Registered Address:
E-mail 1D
Folio No./ Client 1D
DP ID: I/We being the Member(s) of equity shares of Rs. 1000 each
of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited hereby appoint:

1. Name:
E-maii {d:
Address:

Signature: _ o failing him

2. Name:
E-mail Id:
Address:
Signalure: or failing him

3. Name:
E-mall Id:
Address:
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual

General Meeting/ Extraordinary general meeting of the Company, to be held on at
at and at any adjournmeni(s) thereof, in respect of

the resolutions, as indicated below:



Resolution No.
1

2
3.
Signed: this dayof
. . Affix
Signature of shareholders: Revenue
Stamp

Signature of the Proxy holder(s}:

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not fess than 48 hours before the commencement of

the Meeting.




Registered & Corporate Office: 5% Floor, Pragati Maidan, Metro station Building Complex,
New Deihi-110001.

(CIN : U60232DL2006G0I155068)

Aftendance Slip

Registered Folio

Mame

Address

I/ 'we hereby record myfour presence at the 9" Annual General meeting of the Company at its
Registered Office at 5 Floor, Pragati Maidan, Metro station Building Complex, New Dethi-110001,

on Monday, 21.09.2015 at 12340 Hrs.

Signature of the Shareholder/ Proxy Present:




DIRECTORS' REPORT

Ladies /Gentlemen,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Ninth Annual Report of the Company along with

the Anrwal Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2015.

11 F En-anciaﬁ Statements.
Financial Stalements for financial year 2014-2015 have been prepared in accordance with the

Schedule i1 of the Companies Act, 2013.The Corporation has incurred the following expenditure during

the year 2014-2015.

A} Capital Expenditure on Project Execution was as under :
(Rupees in Crore}

Description As at During As at

31.03.2014 | Financial Year 31.03.2015
2061415

CAPEX {(Without cost of land}

Tangible assets .98 2.85 1183

Intangible assels £.41 .00 .41

Capital work in Progress | 1561.32 171110 3,272.42

Assets under development 763 168 931

Capital Advances 259087 | 24540 2836.27

Total Capex (Without cost of land) 4,169.21 1,961.03 6130.24 |

COSY OF LARD {Borne by MOR) 6,180.99 936.47 7117.46

Total Capex with cost of land 10,350.20 2,897 .50 13,247.7G




B) DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT

During the year the balance of Development Account ¥ 189.73 Crore has been transferred to

Capital work in progress, details of which are as under:-
{(Rupees in Crore)

Particulars For year ended 31.03.2015 |For vear ended 31.03.2014

Employee benefit expenses 76.00 61.55
Finance cost {Including Interest) 90.85 27.98
Depreciation & amortization 277 2.62
EXpENsEs

Administration & Other expenses 53.68 46.80
Sub-Total 217.10 138.95
Forex variation (Loss\(Gain}) (210} 2.70
Less : Other Income 2527 19.71
Total Transferred {o CWIP 184.73 121.84

C} Dividend

Your Directors recommend ‘No’ dividend, as the company is under construction phase.
D} Anamount proposed for transfer to reserve: NIL

1.2 SOURCE OF FUND: CAPITAL STRUCTURE, _

As on 31t March 2013, the Authorized Share Capital of Company stands at ¥ 8000, 00, 00,000
{Rupees Eight Thousand Crore} divided into 8, 00, 00,000 (Eight Crore) Equity shares of ¥1,000/-
gach,

As on 31.03.2015, the Company's paid up Share Capital was 3715, 66, 88,000 {Rupees Three
Seven One Five Crore Sixty Six Lac Eighty Eight Thousand only) divided into 37156688 (Three Crore
seventy one iac fifty six thousand six hundred eighty eight only Equity Shares of ¥1000 each and
Share Application Money was T1087.00 Crore. The Paid up Capital of the Company has been




enhanced on account of equity contribution from Ministry of Railways. The Capital Structure was as

under;
{Rupees in crore)

PARTICULARS As at 31.3.2015 | As a1 31.3.2014
EQUITY FUNDING
Shareholder's Fund 382610 2,780.48
Share application monay pending allotment 1.067.00 1.007.93
DEBT FUNDING
JICA 91286 743.93
IBRD 528.22 25269
Total §,354.18 4,785.01

121  Debt Funding
{i} Phase | {Vadodara ~ Rewari) 920 km & Phase Il (Vadodara ~ JNPT and Rewari - Dadri) 564 km
{JICA} — Consultancy.
The Loan Agreement 1D-P205 for Engineering Services Consultancy (Phase 1) for 2.606 Biflion
Japanese Yen for Vadodara - Rewarl section of 820 km was signed with JICA and funds to the tune
of ¥116.45 Crore have been utilized up to 31.03.2015.
Another loan Agreement ID-P212 for Engineering Sesrvices Consultancy (Phase 1) (Vadodara - JNPT
and Rewari—Dadri} ~ 564 km for 1.616 Billion Japanese Yen was signed with JICA and ¥ 64.81 Crore
have been utilized in this foan up fo 31.03.2015.
i} Phase | {(Vadodara - Rewari) 920 km (JICA)-Construction
The Loan Agreement ID-P209, first tranche for construction in the Phase |, for 90.262 billion Japanese
Yer was signed with JICA and ¥731.60 Crore have been utilized in this foan up to 31.03.2015.
iy The Loan Agreement for WDFC Phase-lf (Main Loan}.
The Loan Agreement ID-P229, first tranche for construction in the Phase I, for 136.119 Billion Japanese
Yen was signed with JICA and with this funding arrangement for entire WDFC has been tied up.

No expenditure is incurred upto 31.03.2015 against this loan.




iv} Funding for Mughaisarai-Kanpur-Khurja-Ludhiana section (1131 Kms) and Khurja-Dadri

Section of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor.

World Bank gave ‘in principle’ approval to finance Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor from Mughalsarai -
Ludhiana and Khurfa ~ Dadri Section. Total Loan of US$ 2725 hillion was agreed for the project.
e Loan agreement for US$ 975 million for EDFC -1 from Khurja ~ Bhaupur (343km) vide
Loan No. 8066 IN was signed on 27.10.2011 and 2498.27 Crore have been utilized in this loan
up o 31.03.2015.
« Loan No. 8318 ~IN for US$ 1100 Million was sanctioned by the World Bank for EDFC Project - 2
from Bhaupur ~ Mughalsarai. Loan agreement was signed on 11.12.2014 and T 1.55 Crore have
been utilized in this toan up to 31.03.2015.
 Technical negotiation for Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor 3 Project from Khuria- Sahnewal
section was held on 13.06.15 which was upgraded to negotiation on 27.05.15. Loan amount of
US$ 650 million has been sanctioned by the World Bank on 30.06.2015. Advance procurement

has already been permitted by the World Bank.

2. THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS,

2.4 CONTRACTS AWARDED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2014-2015:
The details of Contracts awarded during 2014-2015 are as follows:

(A}  WESTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR: (WORKS & CONSULTANCY)

1. Electrical and Mechanical Package for Rewari-Vadodara section (EMP-4) Lefter of
‘Acceptance was issued on 18.11.2014 and the confract agreement signed on 04.03.2015. The
Contract was effectuated from 01-05-2015 and the date of commencement for the confract is
15.05.2015.

2. Special Steel Bridges Package (CTP-3A (R)) for bridges over Sabarmati and Mahi Rivers:

Letter of Acceptance was issued on 26.08.14. The contract was effectuated in November 2014

and the date of commencement for the contract is 20.11.2014.
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(B)

1.

Project Management Consultancy for WDFC Phase-l (PMC-i): Letter of Acceptance was
issued on 21-02-2014, Contract Agreement was executed on 27-03-2014 and the contract was

effectuated on 11% April 2014.

EASTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR: (WORKS & CONSULTANCY)

Design and Construction of Civil, Structures and Track Works for Mughalsarai - Karchana
section {EDFC-2) Contract Package-201: Contract awarded on 31.03.2015 to GIL ~ SIL (JV).
Contract agreement signed on 27.05.2015 and commencement date is 12.05.2015.

Design and Construction of Civil, Structure and Track work for Karchana - New Bhaupur
Section (EDFC-2) Contract Package-202: Contract awarded on 31.03.2015 to GIL - SIL (JV).
Contract agreement signed on 27.05.2015 and commencement date is 12.05.2015.

Quality and Safety Audit consultancy Services for Bhaupur — Khurja Section of Eastern
DFC Project -1: Confract was awarded to Mott MacDonald Lid., (UK) and Mott MacDonald Pui.
Lid. {India) and contract was signed on 06.05.2014.

PMC services for Mughalsarai- New Bhaupur section of EDFC-2 Project was awarded to JV
of SYSTRA S.A. France, SYSTRA MVA Consulting (India) Pvt Ltd., Mott MacDonald Limited (U K).
& Motlt MacDonald Private Limited (India) on 31.03.2015.

{C} OPERATIONS & BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT.

1.

Consudtancy contract for appointment of Legal Consultant for Developing a Mode! Concession
Agreement for PPP in Construction, Operation & Maintenance of Dankuni — Gomah Phase-! of
Dankuni - Sonnagar Section of Eastern Dedicated Freight Coridor (EDFC) was awarded fo

Mfs HAS Advocales.

2.2 CONTRACTS LIKELY TO BE AWARDED IN THE CURRENT FINANCIAL YEAR 2015-2016:

(A)

WESTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIODOR (WORKS & CONSULTANCYY

Following contracts have been finalized during the current financial vear:

1.

Signal & Telecom Package {STP-5), for Rewari-BRC section, WDFC Phase-l Letter of

Acceptance was issued on 22.06.15.
Civil and Track Package (CTP-13) for section between Makarpura- Sachin {134 Kms.) on

WDFC Phase-ll: Lefter of Acceptance was issued on 22.5.2015.




-
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5.

Civil and Track Package {CTP-12) for section between Sachin-Vaitarna {186 Kms.) on WDFC
Phase-ll: Letter of Acceptance was issued on 22.05.2015.

Special Steel Bridges Packages 154, 15B & 15C on WDFC Phase-ll: Letier of Acceptance for
three contract packages having jurisdicton between JNPT-Sanjali, Bharuch-BRC and
Rewari-Dadri section respectively for bridges over major rivers and iong span Rail Fly Overs, were

issued on 03.06.2015,
Signal and Telecom package (STP-5A}): Letter of Acceptance has been issued on 12.08.2015.

Following contracts are likely to be finalized during the current financial year,

8.

1

1.

Civil and Track Package (CTP-3(R)) for section between lgbalgarh to Makakrpura, WDFC
Phase-1 is planned fo be awarded by January 2016. This package was earlier discharged for
re-invitation and has been calied with post qualification criteria to reduce procurement time.

Bids for Civil and Track Package {CTP-11} for the section between Vaitarna to JNPT having
route length of about 102 Kms, has besn invited and the bids are scheduled to be received in the
month of Cclober 2015, 1t is expected that LOA would be issued by the end of Feb. 2016.

Bids for Civil and Track Package {CTP-14) for section between Rewari-Dadri (128Kms) has
been invited with last date of submission as 02.11.2015. it is expected that LOA for this package
would also be issued by the end of March 2016. This is an integrated combined package for all
works 1.e. Civil, Elecirical and S&T works.

Bids for Electrical and Mechanical Package (EMP-16) for Makarpura-JNPT section have also
been invited with last date of submission as 25.08.2015. it is expecied that LOA for the package
would be issued by January 2016.

Bids for Signal & Telecom Package (STP-17) for the section Makarpura-JNPT, has been
invited with last date of submission as (07.11.2015. It is expected that package would be finalized
by the end of Feb. 2016,

Project Management Consultancy (PMC-il (R)): Earlier opened RFP for PMC-1# for entire WDFC
Phase-ll, was discharged for re-invitation. Fresh proposal have now been received and technical
offer opened on 04.07.2015, which is presently under evaluation. It is expected that the contract

would be finalized by the end of Sept. 2015
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EASTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR: (WORKS & CONSULTANCY),

Fotlowing contracts have been finalized during the current financial year:

1.

Design, Construction, Supply, Instaftation, Testing and Commissioning of 2x25kV AC 50 Hz
Electrification, Signalling And Telecommunication for Bhaupur- Khurja Section, Package-
104 - Contract awarded fo Alstom Consortium on 21.07.2015. _
Quality and Safety Audit Consultancy for Mughalsarai - New Bhaupur Section. Contract
awarded to GETINSA — S.N. BHOBE (JV) on 06.67.2015.

Following contracts are likely to be finalized during the current financial year:

3.

Design, Supply, Construction, Signalling, Telecommunication for Mughalsarai - New Bhaupur
section, Contract Package 203: Likely fo be awarded by March 2016.

Design Supply Construction installation, Testing and Commissioning of 2X25KY, 50HZ, AC
traction Electrification for Mughalsarai - New Bhaupur Section, Contract Package 204: Likely
{o be awarded by March 2016,

Design and Construction of Civil, Structures and Track Works for Sahnewal-Pilkhani Section,
Contract Package -301: Likely to be awarded by March 2016,

Design and Construction of Civil, Structures and Track Works for Dadri-Khurja section,
Package 302: Likely fo be awarded by March 2016.

Design and Construction of Formation in Embankments /Cuttings including blanketing, Viaducs,
Rail Flyover, Bridges (Major, Minor & RUBs), from Howrah end approach of DFC Sone bridge fo
Chirailapathu station of IR towards Howrah & to New Sonnagar station towards Garhwa and at
Delhri-on-Sone yard from Km, 3.16 to Km. 538 in connection with Eastern Dedicated Freight
Cortidor. Likely to be awarded by February 2016.

Uesign and Construction of Track and Track related works between Durgauti - Mughalsarai section.

{C} Operations & Business Development Department:

1.

Consultancy Contract for Heavy Haul Rail Capacity Development in india (HHRCDI) was awarded
to Ms. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu India Pyt Lid.

Consuftancy services for Institutional Strengthening Module of DFCCIL (ISMD): Draft Contract
Agreement was signed on 22.07.2015. The final contract is expected fo be signed in August 2015.




2.3

3. Consultancy services for Development of Marketing and Commercial Strategies for DFCCIL

(DMCSDY: Draft Contract Agreement was signed on 23.07.2015. The final contract is expected to

be signed in August 2015.
Consultancy services for Non-discriminatory Access for DFCCIL (CSNDAD): Draft Contract

Agreement is expected to be signed in July 2015 & final contract is expected to be signed in August

2018,

PHYSICAL PROGRESS OF THE CONTRACTS:

WESTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR

A
1.

Works Contracts: Equity Funded

Design and Construction of important and Major Bridges {54} between Vaitama and Utran
(approx.200Kms}) on Vasai-Baruch section in the states of Maharashtra and Guiarat, has been
awarded on fump sum contract basis. (Contract Agreement No. HQ/EN/WC/Bridges/D&R/1/Soma,

dated 17-03-2009).

&

The scope of work involves design and construction of 46 Major and 8 important bridges. 29 bridges
are on Pile foundation and 25 bridges on Open foundation.

The work of construction of main bridge has already been completed at 26 no. of bridges. Present
progress of work s 66.47%. The work was scheduled to be completed by 15.06.2015 with the
revised cost Rs. 667.81 Crore but a dispute has arisen between the parties. The award declared
by Arbifration Tribunal has been challenged in the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. Further action wil
be taken as per the outcome of the proceedings. However, an effort is being made to resolve the

matter in order {o restart the work, fo ensure completion by 2017.

BRIDGE NO.S3 {23X19M)

Bird's eve view compleied Fis fom PI1i0 P8




2. Consultancy Contracts: Equitv Funded

Froject Management Consultancy for Design and Construction of Important and Major Bridges (54}

hetween

Valrama and Utran (approx.200Kms.): Contract Agreement

(CA No. HQ/EN/WC/Bridges/PMC/1/Span, was executed on 12-06-2009. The Currency of the Contract
has been extended upto 14.06.2016 and the work is in progress.

3. Works contracts: JICA Funded

1. Civil & Track Package for Rewari-igbalgarh section (CTP-1 & 2);

Coniract executed in August 2013 at a value of approx. Rs. 6699/- crore.

Concrete Sleeper Plant at Bhagega, has been commissioned and trial production has
started.

About 22% physical progress and 14% financial progress has been achieved.

25 % of total earthwork has been completed.

Work on 32 no. of major bridges is in progress.

Work on 48 no. of minor bridges completed and 201 no. of bridges are in progress.

Work of construction of RUB at 21 Nos also compleled.




. Lﬁng Line '_}Siefeg;é;'_aﬁ__lég Plant ﬁ.t Bhagega- WDFC

2. Bpi Steel Bridges across Rivers- Mahi & Sabarmati{CTP-3AR)):

®

Lefter of Acceplance issued on 26.08.2014 and work commenced on 20.11.2014. The
scope of work includes design and construction of 585 m long bridge over river Mahi and
536 m long bridge over river Sabarmati.

Soil investigation and Hydrological study has been completed for both bridges.

Design and drawings are under finalization. Work on sub-structure and fabrication of

super structure will commence shortly.

3. Electrical & Mechanical Works of WOFC Phase-l(EMP.4):

&

05 Nos of Traclion Sub-Station (TSS) sites under CPM/Jaipur and 06 nos. under
CPM/Ajmer jointly checked with confractor and handed over except for 7SS site at
Kishangarh where there is Court Stay Order.

For 05 nos. TSS sites under Ahmedabad and Vadodara units, land is in possession at
three locations. For the rest, possession is expected latest by 15-11-15.

The contractor has submitted various documents e.g. Document Control Procedure Safety,
Health & Environment (SHE) Policy Survey Plan & Programme, Design Submission Plan
& Programme, Contractual Construction Programme, Design Quality Assurance Plan etfc.

which have been/being reviewed by the Engineer.
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. Consultancy Contracts: JICA Funded
1. Project Management Consultancy for WDFC Phase-l (Rewari-Vadodara):

= PMC contract was awarded fo a consortium led by Nippon Koei, Japan in February 2014,

« The scope of work involves supporting DFCCIL in implementation of 920 km long WDFC
Phase-, through stages of design, construction, testing and commissioning. The role of
PMC will be that of Engineer in Design-Build Lump Sum contracts of WDFC Phase-1.

« Contract was executed in March 2014 and the work is in progress in managing the
contracts of CTP-1&2, CTP-3 A(R), EMP-4 & STP-5

2. Engineering Services Consultancy Contract for Phase- Rewari-Vadodara:- Contract was
awarded to a consortium led by Nippon Koel, Japan. The scope of work includes providing
consultancy services for planning, enginesring design and procurement for WDFC Phase-l. As
procurement process could not be concluded, completion period has presently been extended up
to 3¢t December 2015. The pending contract packages are:

¢ Bids for Procurement of Rolling Stock Package (RS-7), being executed by MoR, have been
received on 301 June 2015. Technical Bids are under evaluation.
« Bids for Procurement of Civil and Track packages for Igbalgarh to Makarpura section

CTP-3(R}, will be received in Oclober 2015,

3. Engineering Services Consulfancy for WDFC Phase-ll, Vadodara-JNPT & Rewari-Dadri:
Contract was awarded to a consortium fed by Nippon Kosl, Japan. The scope of work inciudes
providing consultancy services for planning, engineering design and procurement for WDFC
Phase-ll. As the procurement process could not be concluded, the extension have been granted
to the Consuitant upto June 2016. At present procurement under following remainihg packages of
WDFC Phase-l, are in progress:

= Civil and Track Package for the section between JNPT-Vaitaran (CTP-11)
s Civii and Track packags -14 in the section Rewari-Dadr,

¢ EMP-16 for the section between Makarpura and JNPT &

« 5&T package, STP -17, for the section between Makarpura to JNPT,




EASTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR
A WORKS CONTRACTS: EQUITY FUNDED {Mughalsarai-Sonnagar Section)
1. Design and Construction of formation including Blanketing, Major Bridges, Minor Bridges,
RUBs, ROBs, from new Karwandiya to New Ganj Khwaja. {Approximate 105 Kms) on

Mughalsarai-Sonnagar section.
= Physical work of Earthwork & Bridges between New Karwandiya to Durgawati stations
completed.
e  Earthwork in Durgawati — Ganjkhwaja section is under progress.
2. Design, procurement, Construction of Track and frack related works and its testing &
commissioning from New Karwandiya (Rly. Km. 564) to Durgawati (Rly. Km. 630} approx. 66
KiMs on Mughalsarai-Sonnagar Section.

e {rack laid through New Track Construction (NTC) machine between Durgawati - Sasaram

Section and ready for opening.

e Track linking between Sasaram — Karwandiya Section is under progress.

MACHINE PACKING ON DFC TRACK

%‘};%é% LE Ry a Mo Hurko ‘ =
DFC ELECTRICAL SUB STATION IPS INSTALLATIONS AT NEW KUDRA




3.

NEWLY LAID DFC TRACKS

Design and Construction of Important Bridge across river Sone (approximate length 3.06 Kms),

between Sonnagar (Rly.Km.549) and Dehri-on-Sone (Riy Km.554): Construction is in advanced
stage. Launching of PSC girders is in progress. Overall progress is around 56% upfo July' 2015.

Design  and Construction of Rall Flyover near Ganjkhwaja, Formation in
Embankments/Cuttings including blanketing, Bridges {Major, Minor & RUBSs), between Dehri-on-
Seone & Mughalsaral: Earthwork and Bridge work in Karwandiya - Dehri-on-Sone section is in

progress. Rail Fly Over (RFO) work at Ganjkhwaja is to be started.




B. CONSULTANCY CONTRACTS : EQUITY FUNDED (Mughalsarai-Sonnagar Section)

1.

Project Management Consuitancy Services fo facilitate Construction of formation etc. from
Chainage 14.108 Km {Near New Karwandiya) to Chainage 119.437 Km (Near New Ganj

Khawaja) (Approx. 105 Kms.): PMC work is in progress for execution of the civil work,

Project Management Consultancy for Design and Construction of Track, Signaling & Telecom
works, traction power supply, SCADA, OHE and General Electrical works from New Karwandiya
(Riy. Kms-564} to Durgawati (Rly. Km-630) approx. 66 Kms : PMC for track and system works is

in progress.

Project Management Consuitancy for Design and Construction of Important Bridge across
river Sone (approximate length 3.06 Kms) & Rail Flyover near Ganjkhwaia: PMC for above

works is under progress.

C. WORKS CONTRACTS : WORLD BANK FUNDED {Ludhiana - Mughalsarai & Khurja - Dadri)

1.

Civil, Structure & Track Works (CST) for Bhaupur-Khurja Section (LOT-101, 102 & 103):

were signed during March, 2613 for an approximate fotal value of Rs.3267 crore. The works are
in progress in all the three contract packages.

= Physical progress of about 3% and financial progress of 32% has been achieved.

= 64% of Earthwork has since been completed. 220 Km of embankmenti has been constructed fo

half the height (H/2), 180 Km for full height (H) and 152 Km of blanket has been completed.
¢ Progress on Rall F;yovér was 20%. The foundations for 5 RFOs out 7 Nos have been compieted
and substructures are in progress.
= Progress on Major Bridges had been 45% and on 6 Major bridges out of 15 Nos, the work has
come up to the level of sub structure.
s Progress on Minor bridges had been 62%. 152 Nos of Minor bridges out of 243 Nos and 21 Nos
of Minor RUBs out of 152 Nos have been completed.

e Temporary depots at Bhadan, Maitha and Daudkhan were established. 16 Kims of track linking

has been completed.

Tender was awarded in three packages to Ms. TATA ALDESA (JV) and contract agreements



in progress.
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2. Civil, Structures & Track Works {CST) for Mughaisarai-New Bhaupur Section (CP 201 & 202):
Contract was awarded to Ms. GMR-SEL (JV) in March 2015 and Contract has commenced during
May 2015. The contractor has mobilised men and machinery.

e Geotechnical survey & detailed topegraphic Survey is in Prograss. Work on setting up of
the field laboratories has started.

¢ Design team has been mobilised and alignment design is in progress.

e Physical possession of ROW has been started by digging trench at boundary.

»  More than 90% land of ROW has been handed over to CST confractor, Trench digging at

boundary has commenced for firm demarcation.

Geotechnica! investioation in Progress Topographical Survey in progress

D. CONSULTANCY CONTRACT : WORLD BANK FUNDED
1. Project Management Consultancy for EDFC-1 {Bhaupur- Khurja):
e Contract has been awarded to Ms. SAl- TYPSA consortium and confract agreement was signed
during Oct-2013.
s The scope of services involve implementation of CST and System contracts through the stages of
design, construction, festing and commissioning. The role of PMC will be that of Engineer
administering Design- Build Lump sum contract for EDFC-1.

e The services are In progress implementing presently the oivil confract awarded to

Ms. TATA- ALDESA (JV) and the System Contract.




2. Project Management Consultancy for EDFC-2 {New Bhaupur-Mugalsarai)
s Confract was awarded to Ms Systra-Mott MacDonald Consortium and Contract agresment signed
during June 2015. Contract commenced since 15t July 2015.
¢ The scope of services involve implementation of CST and System Contracts through the stages
of design, construction, testing and commissioning. The role of PMC will be that of “Engineer”
administering Design-Build Lump sum contract for EDFC-2

e The PMC has started mobilisation. Team leader has joined.

24 Land Acquisition and Social Safeguards Measures,

DFC alignment is passing through 9 sfates and 66 districts in the Country. On Eastern Corridor, DFC
alignment from Dankuni fo Ludhiana passes through the states of West Bengal, Jharkhand, Bihar, Uttar
Pradesh, Haryana, and Punjab. The Western Corridor will traverse the distance from Dadri in Uttar

Pradesh, via Haryana, Rajasthan, and Guiarat to JNFT in Maharashtra.

in view of the heavily populated areas and structures falling in the alignment, the alignment in Khurja-
Pilkhani section was changed from parallel to detour at Meerut, Muzzafamagar and Hapur. Besides, with
increase in requirement of land in WOFC, the overall requirement of land has increased from 10667 to
11539 Hectares over more than 3300 Kms. This includes 9804 hectares of private land, the rest being
government land. Cn the Eastern DFC, land acquisition is spread over a length 1318 Kms with an area of
about 4548 hectares {excluding Sonnagar-Dankuni over the route of 538 Kms covering an area of 1002
hectares). On Western DFC, it is spread over a length of 1520 Kmis with an area of about 5988 hectares,
Being notified as a Special Railway Project, land acquisition for the project is govemned by the Railways
{Amendment) Act, 2008 (RAA 2008).

As on 31.03.2015, the progress of land acquisition is approximately 84.2% (except Sonnagar-Dankuni
section) and 81% on overall basis. Out of the folal requirement of private land of 9063 Hectares (except for
Sonnagar-Dankuni section), 20A notifications for only 100 Hectare for the portion of the changed alignment
is pending. Total award for 7888 Hectares {comprising 87%) has been completed. For Sonnagar-Dankuni
section, 20A for 903 Hectares out of 1002 has also been issued. Total compensation amounting
to ¥ 6882 Crore (WDFC- € 4140 Crore , EDFC- ¥ 2742 Crore ) has been awarded.

As per section 20-0 of the Railway {Amendment} Act, 2008, the ‘National Rehabilitation and Resettlement
Policy, 2007 was fo be adopted. The Ministry of Railways had issued Entitlement Matrix (EM) which
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covered category-wise entitiements to be given to Project Affected Persons (PAPs) based on the relevant
provisions of NRRP-2007. With the passage of “the Right to Fair Compensation and Transparency in Land
Acquisition, Rehabititation & Resettlement Act, 2013 followed by the Amendment Crdinance, the provisions
of the new act with regard to compensation & R&R are applicable to all acquisition being undertaken by
DFCC from 01.01.2015. A new Entitlement Matrix has been issued by Railway Board as per the provisicns
of the new Act and has coms info force from 01.01.2015. The same has been made available on DFCCIL
web site, all the CPM office, Public places in affected villages for the public information. Disbursement of

T 234 Crore against resettiement and rehabilitation has also been completed.

Due care has been taken io avoid or minimize land acquisition and involuntary resettiement impacts by
exploring all viable alternatives and fo ensure adequate rehabilitation package and expeditious
implementation of rehabilitation process. The Company has a well formulated Resettlement Policy
Framework (RPF)' to take appropriate resettiement and rehabilitation measures for persons / household
adversely affected due fo implementation of DFC project. Social Impact Assessment studies have been
conducted for EDFC & WDFC fo meet the World Bank & JICA Social safeguard policies. During the year
2014-15, Resefllement Action Plan (RAP) and Environmental Assessment (EA) Report including
Environmental Management Plan (EMP) of Phase-1 of APL-3 (Szhnewa! — Pitkhani, 175 km. and Dadri —
Khurja 46 km) fotal 221 kms have also been finalized in accordance with the provisions of the new Land

Acquisition Act, 2013, and uploaded on DFCC’s website for public information.

Three NGOs were appointed in EDFC-2 for smooth impiementation of RAP, preparation of Micro Plan and
assist in resolution of various grievances of PAPs. An External independent Agency for monitoring & review
of Social & Environmental Safeguards for EDFC-2 was also appointed during the year. The agency will
monitor & review the progress of land acquisition and R&R, implementation of RAP & EMP and provide
suggestions for improving the same. The Sccial & Environmental Sefeguards monitoring & review
Consultant (SESMRC) appointed for EDFC-1 has been continuously monitoring the implementation plan
of the RRP and EMP and has helped DFCCIL in providing the project personnel ensure a quality and safe

work environment.

Expression of Interest for engaging SESMRC for Phase-1 of APL-3 (Sahnewal — Pilkhani, 175 km. and

Dadri — Khurja 46 km) fotal 221 kms has also been invited.




in order {o assess the Cumuiative impacts of Dedicated Freight Corridor, a report on Cumuiative Impact
Assessment {CIA) has also been prepared. Detailed report on cumulative impaci assessment of EDFC

project {Ludhiana to Mughalsarai} is under process.

Needs and concems of the Project Affected Persons (PAPs) are addressed by emphasizing their
participation and by extending necessary support to them in the R&R process. The Grievance Redressal
Mechanism provides for addressing legitimate concerns / problems of affected individuals and groups who
may consider themselves deprived of reseilement or rehabilifation benefits as available under the
Resettiement Policy Framework designed for the implementation of DFC project. For grievance redressal,
an Ombudsman has been appointed. Grievance Redressal Committes {GRC) has been constituted for
both Khurja-Bhaupur & Bhaupur-Mughalsaral sections at Project leve! and district level. The Committee
constituted at project level is posted at DFCCIL website. Besides Arbitrators have also been appointed in

each district to look info the grievances pertaining to compensation of land.

2.5 DANKUNI-SONNAGAR PPP PROJECT

It has been decided by the Ministry of Railway 0 construct Dedicated Freight Corridor section between
Dankuni- Sonnagar (540Kmj through Public Private Parinership modet in two phases i.e., Dankuni-Gomoh
section (282.2Kms) as Phase-! and Gomoh- Sennagar section {256.581Kms) as Phase-ll. The status of
the project is summarized as under:

» Land Acquisition: The Phase wise position of Land acquisition are as under

Description Land Acquisition Section

204 WE 20F
Dankuri- Gomoh | Total Requirement 55275 Ha 552.76 Ha 55275 Ha
section {282.2Kms}  Progress  uplo 56275 Ha 503.00 Ha 33855 Ha
Phase-| March 2015 {(100%) (91%) {(61%)
Gomoh- Sonnagar | Total Requirement 449.50 Ha 44950 Ha 44950 Ha
section  {256.581Kms} | Progress  uplo 25870 Ha 160.50 Ha 140.00 Ha
Phase-li March 2015 (58%) {(36%) [31%;)

The land acquisition so far have been smooth except at Balarambati mauza of Singur in Hoogly District,
Shaktigarh, Mankar, Andat & Kulti in Bardhaman District, West Bengal and Villages falling on Gaya Detour
in Bihar where Project Affected People (PAP) are demanding compensation package for land acquisition




as per New Land Acquisition Act. Due to Maoist activities in Koderma detour (57Km), the progress of

stacking of the alignment on the ground and fand acquisition has been slow.

2.6

{etailed Project Report (DPR}):
The DPR of Dankuni- Gomoh section Ph-f and Gomoh- Sonnagar section - Ph-1i has been finalized,

Project Estimated Cost:

The Concessionaire Cost of Dankuni- Gomoh saction Ph-l has been aestimated at Rs.4570Crs . The
estimate for Gomah-Sonnagar section Ph-ll has been estimated at Rs.5520Crs.

The alignment and location of New Crossing stations (4 nos} and New Junction stations (4 nos) with 2
cabins along with various infrastructure facifities for Dankuni- Gomoh section (282.2Kms}- Ph-1 have
been firmed up. For Gomoh- Sonnagar section, Ph-1l, alignment and location of two nos out of 6 nos
of New Crossing stations are under approval.

Manual of Standards and Specifications:

The consuftancy contract for drafting of Manual of Standards & Specifications have been awarded fo

/s RITES. The report has been finalized and sent to Railway Board on 17.02.15.

Financial Modeling:

Based on the Terms of Reference (TOR| for Financial Modeling for Dankuni- Gomoh section Ph-1 given
by Railway Board, a consultancy contract has been awarded to M/s Grant Thornton. The Final report
on Financial Modeling has been submitied by Financial Consuitant and sent to Rly Board on 15.10.14,
The Feasibility report & Traffic Study report:

The “in-house” Feasibility report & Traffic Study report for Dankuni- Gomoh section Ph-I has been
prepared and sent fo Railway Board.

Legal Consultant has been engaged for developing Concession Agreement and other documents,

FUTURE CORRIDORS:

Rallway Board has entrusted the work of PETS (Preliminary Engineering and Traffic Survey) of
following four future corridors:

i East - West Corridor (Kolkata — Mumbai) (2328 km as per PETS)

i) North — Seuth Corridor (Delhi - Chennat} {2327 km as per PETS)

fit} East Coast Corridor {Kharagpur ~ Vijayawada) (1120 km as per PETS)

vy Southern Corridor (Chennai-Goa) (830 km)
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The work of PETS was awarded to RITES. The work commenced during September 2011 at cost of
Rs. 68.5 crore {without tax).

The finai draft PETS report of North — South Corridor and East-West Corridor has been submitted by
RITES during the year. Field data collection for East-Coast Corridor and Souther Corridor {Renigunta
to Hubli) has been completed. Draft PETS report for East — Coast Corridor is expected by September
2015 and for Southern Corridor by March 2016.

3.1 Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.
During the year under review, there were changes in the composition of the Board of Directors of the

Company on account of appointments and cessation, which are as follows:

Following directors have joined the Board during the ﬁnanaiaE year 2014-2015,

1.

Vide Railway Board letter No 2010/£(0)1/40/25 dated 20.03.2014, consequent upon appointment of
Sh. RK. Gupta, MD/DFCCIL on deputation basis, as General Manager, Eastern Railways, it was
directed that Sh. R.K. Gupta will continue to look after the duties of MD/DFCCIL till further orders.
Vide Railway Board letter No 2010/E(C)11/40/25 dated 28.07.2014, the additional charge of the post of
Managing Director (DFCCIL) was entfrusted to Shri Anshuman Sharma, Director (PP}, DFCCIL, in
addition to his own, for a period from the date he takes over the cﬁarge of the post and till a regular
PESB selected incumbent joins the post of MD/DFCCIL or until further orders, whichever is earlier. He
assumed the charge of MD/DFCCIL w.ef. 28.07.2014 (AN).

Vide Railway Board’s Jetter No. 2014/E{O}11/40/9 dated 14.10.2014, the Competent Authority approved
the appointment of Sh. Adesh Sharma, IRSE, CAQ/South Westem Railway, as Managing Director/
DFCCIL on immediate absorption basis for a period of five years. He assumed the charge of
MD/OFCCIL weef. 20.10.2014 (FN).

Vide Railway Board letter No 2013/E(O)I1/40/4 dafed 27.10.2014, The Competent Authority had
approved the appointment of Sh. D.5. Rana, CPM/DFCCIL as Director (Infrastructure) on the Board of
DFCCIL on immediate absorption basis for a period of five years. He assumed the charge of the post
of Dir/ Infrastructure, DFCCIL w.e.f. 27.10.2014 (FN).

Vide Railway Board letter No 2009/Infra/6/2 dated 03.02.2015, the President of India appointed
Sh. AK. Mital, Chairman Railway Board as Part- time Chairman on the Board of DFCCIL with
immediate effect vice Sh. Arunendra Kumar, Ex Chairman Railway Board till he holds the post of

Chairman, Raitway Board or further orders whichever is earfier.
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The following Directors cease to be hold office during the financial year 2014-2015.

a. Vide Railway Board's letter No.2013/Infra/6/29 dated 08.01.2014, Sh. Bhaskar Gupta,
independent Director completed his extended tenure of three months on 07.04.2014,

b.  Vide Railway Board letter No 2010/E(O)1/40/25 dated 28.07 2014, Sh. R K. Gupta, IRSE, General
Manager Eastern Railway relinquished the Additional Charge of the post of Managing Director,
DFCCIL on 28.07.2014 (AN).

c.  Sh. Anshuman Dir/PP ceased fo hold the additional charge of Managing Director wef
20.10.2014.

d.  5h. Anshuman Sharma, Dir/PP ceased fo hold the additional charge of Dirfinfra w.e.f 27.10.2014.

e.  Sh. Arunendra Kumar, Ex-Chairman Railway Board, ceased to hold the post of Part- Time
Chairman/DFCCIL.

The following Directors hold the cffice after the closure of the financial year 2014-15.
a.  Vide Railway Board’s lefter No 2008/Infra/6/1 dated 25.04.2012, Sh. R.S. Sharma, Independent

Director completed his tenure of three vears on 24.04.2015.

The following Directors are holding office as on the date of this Report;

5. Mo, Name of the Director Designation Date of hoiding
office w.e.f.
1. Sh. AKMital Part Time Chairman (Official} 03.02.2015
2. 5h. Adesh Sharma Managing Director 20.10.2014
3. Sh. Anshuman Sharma Director {Project Planning) 05.04.2011
4. Sh.H.D Gujrati Director {Operations & Business Development) 29.11.2012
5 ShMX. Mital Director ( Finance) 16.09.2013
6. Sh.D.SRana Director {Infrastructure ) 27.10.2014
7. Sh. Girish Filiat Part time Director {Official) 14112012
8. Sh. Gajendra Haidea Part time Director {Official) 02.05.2008



32 Number of meefings of the Board.

During the financial year 2014-2015, the Board of Directors met four times 1o transact the business. The

meetings of the Board of Directors were held on following dates:

S.No. Quarter ; ’ Dates
1 For the quarter ended June 2014 13.06.2014
2. For the quarter ended September 2014 25.08.2014
3 For the guarter ended December 2014 13.11.2014
4 For the quarter ended March 2015 12.02.2015 i

33 Directors’ Responsibility statement under Section 134(8) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of section 134 (3) (c) of Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company confirms
that —

{g) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been foliowed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a frue and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

{c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the asssts of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irrequiarities;

{d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(6) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable faws and that such systems were adequate and operating- The Board of Directors
annually review compliance reports of all laws applicable fo the company, prepared by the
company as well as steps taken by the company to rectify instances of non-compliances. There is

a scope fo strengthen the compiiance management system commensurate to the size of the

Company.




34 A Statement on declaration given by independent directors under section (8) of section 149.

Sh. R. S. Sharma, independent Director, has given declaration pursuant to sub section (6} of section 149

of the Companies Act, 2013,

4, Auditors.

The Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India had appointed M/s Baweja & Kaul, Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the year 2014-2015 and in exercise of powers
conferred by the members, the Board of Directors have fixed their remuneration at g fee of T 8,40, 000/-

(Eight Lac forty thousand only) plus service tax as per applicable rate and out of pocket expenses to be

paid extra.”

41 Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse

remark or disclaimer made by the Auditor and Secrefarial Auditor.

4.1(a}) Statutory Auditors’ Report
The Comments of the Auditors and Management's reply thereto are annexed to this report as
Annexure-"A”,

4.1k} Secretarial Auditor’ Report
The Comments of the Secretarial Auditor and Management’s reply thereto are annexed to this
report as Annexure-“B”. _

4.2 Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.
The Office the Comptroller & Auditor General of India has issued NiL comments on the accounts
of the Company for the year ended 31%t March, 2015, which is annexed to this Report as

Annexure- “C7,

5, Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided.

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are ‘NI

during the year under review.




£. Particulars of Employees under Rule 5(2) Of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

During the year under review, the particulars of employees to be disclosed under Rule 5(2) of the

Companies {Appoiniment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 may be treated as NiL

as none of the employees and Directors/KMPs was in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits

prascribed therein,

7. Contracts and Arrangements with related parties.
During the year under review, on the basis of the disclosure of interest by the Directors, there were no

contracts or arrangements entered info by the company with the related parties as referred in section 188

(1) -of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report.~

There are no reported material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company

which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements

relate 1.e 31.05.2015 and the date of the report,

a. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo.
The Particulars required to be disclosed pursuant to section 134{3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with applicable Rules of Companies (Accounts Rules, 2014) are as follows;

{A} Conservation of energy-
(1} The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

Following energy conservation measures have been taken in the Corporate Office building:
(a) Retro-fitment of existing CFL fittings by energy efficient LED lights.
(b} Fitment of occupancy sensors
{c} Policy on mandatory procurement of BEE star rated products.
The Corporate Office building has been rated 4-star by Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE). Efforts will be
made to obtain S-star rating for the corporate building. The average energy consumption has been reduced

by 5% in Corporate Office building in spite of increase in electrical load.




(i) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate source of energy:

To encourage green energy on DFCCIL network, solar plants have been planned for various
installations along the corridor and its corporate building.

(i} The capital investment on energy conservation equipment.

Approx. Rs. 12.5 lac has been spent on energy conservation measures.

{B} Technology absorption-

<

(i} the efforts made towards technology absorption; -NiL
(i} the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution; - NIL
(i) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial vear) -NIL
(a) the details of technology imported; - N.A.
(b) the year of import; - N.A.
{c} whether the technology been fully absorbed: - N.A.
(d} i notfully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons
thereof, and
(v} the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. - N.A.

The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the period under review are

Foreign Exchange Earning - Nil

Foreign Exchange Culgo - < 141.31 Crore out of which
Interest - { 2.64 Crore

Seminar Training Fee _ T 0.08 Crore

Tour & Travelling Expenses - ¥ 0.02 Crore

L.C Cpening Charges - T 0.40 Crore

Bank Charges JICA Loan - 20.10 Crore

Consuitancy - T 56.11 Crore

Works . T 81.95 Crore




10. A statement indicating development and implementation of a risk management policy for
the company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the
opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the company.

The Company has developed the Enterprise Risk Management Framework which has been approved by

the Audit Committee. The Enterprise Risk Management Framework has been implemented with effect

from 15! December 2014, The top 20 risks each perceived at the stage of "Planning & Construction Phase’
and “Operation Phase” have been identified and prioritized. Mitigation Plan for these top 20 risks has also
been formulated. The Risks so identified and Mitigation Plan so designed would be reviewed and updated
on periodical basis through risk identification and prioritization workshops. A Risk Management structure
has already been defined, which comprise of a Risk Management Committee consisting of Functional as
well as Independent Directors, a Chief Risk Management Coordinator reporting to Risk Management

Committee, Heads of various departments such as Civil, S&T, IT, Administration, Electrical, Operation,

Finance etc, and Chief Project Managers would act as Risk & Mitigation Plan Owner and would be

responsible for risk identification, its prioritization and for framing the mitigation plan. To ensure that there

are appropriate controls in place for the risk management activities a risk monitoring and assurance
mechanism through MIS has been provided as a part of Enterprise Risk Management Framework fo assess

the effectiveness of mitigation plan for a particular risk.

11. The details about the policy developed and implemented by the company on corporate
social responsibility initiatives taken during the vear.
A report of Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives taken during the year under review annexed at

Annexure -D forms the part of Directors Report,

12. OTHER COMPLIANCES

A. Right to Information Act, 2005,
The Right to Information Act seeks to provide for setting out the practical regime of right to information for
citizens to secure access to information under the control of public authorities, in order to promote
transparency and accountability in the working of every public authority.
The Company has appointed Central Public Information Officer, whose names are posted on the website

of the Company. During the year under review company received approx. 367 RTi applications and all

40



cases were disposed of within the stipulated time. Al the replies are avaifable on Company's website which
is updated on fortnightly basis.
During the year, total 22 parliament questions related to DFCC were received and all were replied timely

to the Ministry of Railways.

B. MCA21E -iling
in terms of Companies {Electronic Filing and Authentication of Documents) Rules, 2006 and Companies

(Filing of Documents and Forms in Extensible Business Reporting Language) Amendment Rules 2012, the

Company has filed all the statutory forms and returns electronically during the year under review.

C. Memorandum of Understanding

During the period under review, in terms of the Mol Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises,
a Memorandum of Understanding (2015-16) was signed on 23.03.2015 with Ministry of Raiiways. The
Company has been ranked under the "Very Good" grading of MoU for the year 2013-2014 by the

Department of Public Enterprises.

0. Vigilance

Vigilance Department is an important and integral part of Management, which provides platform for
improving performance of the Organization. The Vigilance Department is headed by a full time CVO
assisted by a team. The Company’s emphasis is on preventive vigilance and system improvement as
compared to punitive vigilance. The Department ensures implementation of laid  down
guidelines/procedures through preventive checks of tenders and coniracts, execution of works, and other
functions as well as carries out investigations Info complaints. To increase transparency, aff the contracts

and purchases made above Rs. One crore are posted on the DFCCIL website.

DFCCIL has well defined complaint handling policy which is available on Vigifance portai of
DFCCIL website. During the year, 16 complaints were received through CYC/Railway Board & individuals
apart from 08 complaints carried from the last year. Out of which 09 complaints were investigated and
finalized. Remaining 15 complaints are at various stages of investigation. During the vear | 14 Preventive
Checks were conducted, out of which, 07 were finalized and balance 07 are under examination, 12 surprise

checks carried and Immovable property refurns ((PRs) submitted by 72 officials were scrutinized.




The Department implements the System improvements:

1. Uploading of Tenders on the website.
2. Rotational transfer of officials.

3. Joint Inspection of store by executive and Finance official,
System Improvements under Implementation.

1. Police verification for background check of cutsourced staff has been made mandatory part of all

outsourcing contracts.
2. Differentiate between the duties of DFCCIL official & competent authority in Land acquisition process.

Awareness Building & Participative Vigilance

In pursuance to directives issued by the Ceniral Vigilance Commission, the Vigilance awareness week was
observed in alf the offices of DFCCIL from 27t September 2014 (o 01t Oclober 2014, The theme of this
year's .Vigilance Awareness Week was “Combating Corruption — Technology as enabler”. The
inauguration of week began with pledge ceremony administered by CVO/DFCCIL on 27.09.2014. An
inferactive conference on the subject was also organized in the Corporate Office on 30" October 2014 in
which Sh. Anit Singhal, Chief Technical Examiner of CVC was the Guest Speaker. An Essay competition

cn the subject “Combating Corruption - Technology as enabler” was also organized and the winners

were suitably awarded.

14. Corporate Governance
In ferms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Guidelines on Corporate

Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises, following forms an integral part of this Board's
Report.

a} A '“Corporate Governance Report placed at Annexure “E” highlights the ;ﬁhiiﬁscphy of the Company
on the Corporate Governance, composition of Board of Directors as well as their attendance in various
meetings, remuneration of directors etc. and other relevant disclosures. It is supplemented by the
foliowing compliance certificates.

i. A declaration signed by the Managing Director affirming the compliance with the code of

conduct by the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel during 2014-2015 is

placed at Annexure “E1".




i.  Cerfification of financial Statements by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
Annexure “E2". -
ii.  Cerlificate of compliance of Corporate Governance obtained from practicing Company
Secretary is placed at Annexure “E3.”
b} A “"Management Discussion and Analysis Report” is placed at Annexure “F.”
c) A Secretarial Audit Report from a Company Secretary in Practice Annexure “G”,
d)  An extract of Annual Return in the prescribed form MGT-9 is appended to the Board Report as

Annexure ‘H'.

15. Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts. .
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going

concern status of the Company and its future operations.

16. Acknowiedgement
The Directors wish to place on record their sincere thanks to Ministry of Railways, State Governments,

Zonal Railways, the Statutory Authorities and Government agencies for their support and patronage,

The Board would also like to acknowledge with thanks the co-operation extended by C&AG, the Statutory
Auditors and the Bankers of the Company.

The Board of Directors acknowledge and wish to place on record their appreciation for the co-operation
and support extended by the associates, the DFCCIL employees and others who have extended their

valued co-operation, support and guidance to the Company, from time to fime.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: New Delhi |  (AK. Mital)
Date : 13.08.2015 Chairman
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DEDICATED FREIGHT dORRfDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA UMiTED

REPLIES TO STATUTORY AUDITORS CbMMENTS INTHE AUDIT REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

315T MARCH 2015

Auditors Comments

Management Reply

Basis of qualified opinion

1.

Bankers have deducted Tax at Source

(TDS) on Interest received on Land Bank

- Accounts (SLAO). These accounts do

not pertain to the company, however, the

company has wrongly recognized the

-TDS on these accounts as its_current

assel and correspondingly‘shown as

payable fo .Ministry of - Railways.

Accordingly the cument assets and

current liabilities are overstated by Rs

16018560/-.

1. The TDS is-in respect of interest on funds lying in the Joint Bank
* Accounts {Flexi Deposit) of State Land Acqu:snt:on Officer {SLAQ)

&DFCCIL. SLAO s the Compelent Authorsly for acquisition of land
for the Project on behalf of Mmistry of Railways {MOR). Money
lying in the bank pertains to MOR and do not form part of the
Company's Accounts as has also been disclosed vide note no.15.1
(a) of the financial statements. Similarly interest earned_oh such
bank balances as well as TDS on interest eamed also do not form |
parl of Company's accounts. Since TDS cerfificate has been
issued by the bank in the hame of the Company and the DS
amount is required to be transferred to MOR, an enfry has been
passed in the books of the Corhpany to give effect to this transfer.
in the glven situation when TDS Certificates have been issued by
the Banks in favour of DFCCIL, there was no alternative bt fo do |
the above accounting. As such there is no overstatement oi |

Current assets & current Liability.




ANNEXURE -B -

MANAGEMENT'S REPLY TO THE OBSERVATIONS OF THE SECRETARIAL AUDITOR.

MANAGEMENT COMMENTS

appointment of Independent
Directors on the Board of the
Company by the Govwt of
India, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration  Committee

and  Corporate Social

Responsibility Commitiee
has not been constituted
properly per  the
requirements Section
177{2) & (3), 178(1)
Section 135 (1) & (3) of the
Companieé Act, 2013,

as
of

and

S.NO. _ OBSERVATIONS | ]
1. The Board of Directors of the | In terms Article 81 of Adicles of Association of the Company-
Company is not duly|the Full Time Directors  including Managing Director,
constituted  with  proper Chairman, Government Nominee Directors and Independent
bafance of Executive and | Directors are appointed by the President of India. The
Non-Executive Directors. Company has already reqﬂes}ed the Ministry to appoiht
requisite number of Independent Direclors & Woman Director
on the Board of Company and the confirmation on same is

awaited from the Ministry of Railays.
2. In  the absence of]| The Company is a “Government Company” With 100%

shéfehofdfng in the name of the President of India through
Ministry of Railways. The entire Share Capital is held by the
President  of  India - along  with Six
Ex ofﬁcib representalives. - . |

In terms Article 81 of Atticles of Association of the Company-
the Full Time Directors including Managing Director,
Chairman, Government Nominee Directors and Independent
Directors are appointed by the President of India. The
Company has already requested the Ministry to appoint
requisite number of Independent Directors & Woman Director
on the Board of Company. In the absence of the independent
Directors on the Board, the Statutory Commiltees cbu‘ldﬂ’t be

constituted in line with the requirement of the Act.




AN Ewure "

Coufidential -. :
AR TRAT TEA YT ol T&er
wrtera T e Sraada Yo anforead
T, AR e, Rae Bwag e
. INDIAN AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT

OFFICE OF THE Pr. DIRECTOR AUDIT (RAILWAY- COMMERCIA})
COFMOW.INDIAN RAILWAYS IIL-Xi\ BRIDGE, NEW DELHI- 110002

No. PDAIR—C/PSU/n-i/DFCCILxzols:i% © " Dated;9g-07.2015

To
The Managing Dnrector, '
Dedicated Freight, Corpor*\tlon of Indla Ltmxted
5" Floor, Pragati M‘udan Metro Station Building
New Dethi -110001. : .

Sub: Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor Generai of India under Secnon 143(6) (b)
‘of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of Dedicated’ Freight
Corridor Corporation of Indxa Lmuted for the year ended 31* March 2015.

Sir, .

| Thé Nil Comments Certificate under Section 143 (6) (b) of the Comp_{mif;:s Act,

2013 on thé Financial Statements of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India .

Limited, New. Delhi for the year endt‘td 31% March 20154 s enci()sed The Nil Comaments

Ce:mhcate on the Financial Statemetits may be pEaced before the Annual General

Meeting. along with Financial Statements of the Company in compliance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Six copies of the printed Annual Reports of the

‘Company may please be sent to this office at.the earliest.

Receipt of the letter may please be acknowledged. '

Yours faithfully,

Encl: As above ' %\WM
_ : ' ' "~ (Dinesh Bhargav)%

Priucipal Director of Audit
(Railway Com:mercial)




_COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER' SECTION
143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FAINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DEDICATED
FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED, NEW DELHI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2015. :

~ The preparation of financial statements of DEDiCATED " FREIGHT CORRIDOR
CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED, New Dethi for the vear ended.31 March 2015 in accordance

with the {manctal reporting framework prescribed under the Compames Act, 2013 is the
responsablllty of the management of the company. The statutory audttors appointed by the
Comptroller and Aud:tor General of India under sectlon 139{5} of the Act are responﬂbfe for
‘ expressmg opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on
mdependem audit in accordance with the standards ‘on auditing prescribed under . section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audat Report dated 30-
06-2015.

" 1, on the behalf of the Comptroller ‘and Audltor Genera! of India, have conducted a

supplementary audit under settion 143{6) (a) of the Act of the financial statements of Dedtcated

?re:ght Corndor Corporation of Endla_ Limited for the year ended 31 March 2015, This
supplementary audit has been carried out mdependently without access to the working papers
of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to -mqusrtes of the statutory. au_ditors -and:
‘company perspnnel' and a sélg;ctive examination of some of the accounting records. On the basis
of my. aud.it‘no:hing significant has cb§n1e to my kno_w!edge:whicfx would give rise to any

commerit upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report.

For and on the béhalf of the™
Comptrolter & Auditor Generd| of India

(Dinesh Bhargav}'
) ' ‘ Principal Director of Audit

, -{Railway Commercial}
Place: New Delhi

Date:24--07-2015
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Annexure -“E”
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT -

1. Abrief statement on Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance.

The Company believes in achieving the Company's Goal and objectives through the highest levels
of ransparency, accountability and equity in all spheres df its operations and in all its dealings. The Corporate
Governance is the application of best management practices, compliance of Laws, rules, regulation and
adherence standard to achieve the objects of the Company.

The key value is {o believe in “Speed, Siqcerity and Success.” The cardinal principles such as

Accountability, Responsibifity, Transparency and Fair Disclosures serve as the means for achieving this.

2. Board of Directors:
2.1 Composition of the Board of Direclors:

In terms of Article 80 of the Arlicles of Association of the Company, the President of India has
determined in writing that there shall be a fotal of 12 Direclors on the Board of DFCCIL. The President of
india wde letter no. 2008/Infra/6/1 dated 04 05.2010 has approved the composition of the Board of Directors |
of BFCCIL as foliows:

¢ Chairman Railway Board (CRB) as Part Time Chairman.

«  Five full time Functional Directors including Managing Director.

*  One Nominee of Ministry of Railways.

« One Nominee of Planning Commission. _

= Four Independent non-official Directors including one from financial institutions depending on

requirement.

2.2 Strength of the Board

© On fhe date of the reporf, the total strength of the Board of Directors of the Company is Seven
comprising of five whole-time Directors, one part time Chairman, One part-time official Directors {nominee)
from Ministry of Railways. The Nominee Director from Planning Commission {(Now NITI Aayog) is no ore in
service with NITI Aayog and the formal order is awaited. The position of four Independent Directors including
one post reserved for Financial Institution are vacant. In terms of Article 81(1) of the Articles of Association

of the Company, The President of India has the power o appoint Directors of the Company.
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Following directors have joined the Board during the financial year 2014-2015.

1.

Vide Railway Board letter No 2010/E(0)H/40i25 dated 20.03.2014, consequent upon appointment of
Sh. RK. Gupta, MD/IDFCCIL on deputation basis, as General Manager, Easlemn Railways, it was
directed that Sh. RK. Gupta will continue to look after the duties of MD/DFCCIL till further orders.

Vide Railway Board lefter No 2010/E{0)11/40/25 dated 28.07.2014, the additional charge of the post of
Managing Director (DFCCIL) was entrusted to Shri Anshuman Sharma, Director (PP), DFCCIL, in
addition to his own, for a period from the date he takes over the charge of the post and till a regular PESB
selected incumbent joins the post of MD/DFCCIL or until furtherbfders, whicheveris earlier. He assumed
the charge of MD/DFCCIL w.e.f. 28.07.2014 (AN).

Vide Railway Board's letter No. 2014/E(0)I/40/9 dated 14.10.2014, the Competent Authority approved
the appointment of Sh. Adesh Sharma, IRSE, CAO/South Western  Railway, as

- Managing Director/ DFCCIL on immediate absorption basis for a period of five years. He assumed the

charge of MO/DFCCIL w.e f. 20.10.2014 (FN).

Vide Railway Board letter No 2013/E(O)I/40/4 daled 27.10.2014, The Competent Authoréty had
approved the appointment of Sh. D.S. Rana, CPM/DFCCIL as Director {Infrastructure) on the Board of
DFCCIL on immediate absorplion basis for a period of five years. He assumed the charge of the post of
Dirf Infrastructure, DFCCIL w.e.f. 27.10.2014 (FN).

Vide Railway Board letter No 2009/nfra/6/2 dated 03.02.2015, the President of India appointed
Sh. AK. Mital, Chairman Raifway Board as Part Time Chairman on the Board of DFCCIL with immediate
effect vice Sh. Arunendra Kumar, Ex -Chairman Railway Board fill he hold the post of Chairman, Railway

Board or further orders whichever is earlier.



The following Directors cease to be hold office during the financial year 2014-2015.

a. Vide Railway Board's letter No.2013/Infra/6/29 dated 08.01.2014, Sh. Bhaskar Gupta, Independent
Director completed his extended tenure of three months on 07.04.2014.

b. Vide Railway Board letier No 2010/E{O)1/40/25 dated 28.07.2014, Sh. RK. Gupta, IRSE, General
Manager Eastern Railway refinquished the Additional Charge of the post of Managing Director, -

DFCCIL on 28.07.2014 {AN).

Sh. Anshuman Dir/PP ceased to hold the additional charge of Managing Director w.e.f 20.10.2014.

d. Sh. Anshuman Sharmé, Dir/PP ceased to hold the additionat charge of Dirfinfra w.e.f 27.10.2014.

e. Sh. Arunendra Kumar, Ex-Chairman Railway Board, ceased to hold the post of part time
Chairman/DFCCIL w.e.f 03.02.2015.

The following Directors hold the office after the closure of the financial year 2014-15.

a. Vide Railway Board's lefler No.2008/Infra/6! dated 25.04.2012, Sh. R.S." Sharma,
Independent Director completed his tenure of three years on 24.04.2015.

The composition of the Board of Directors, on the date of report, along with Directorships held by them and

their attendance in the Board meetings held during the financial year 2014-2015 and the last Annual General

Meeting is tabled below:

S.No. | Category of Name of Number of Total No. of No. of No. of Last AGM
Directors | Directorsi Date of ; Directorships/ Committee Board Board attended
Appointment Chairmanships Membersﬁipsl Meetings meetings
in public chairmanships | held during | attended
companies in public 2014-2015 {during
including companies {during their
DFCCIL and including their respective
excluding private | DFCCIL and respective | fenures)
Companies 1 &5 excluding tenures)
private

companies ("4 &
5)

(1) Chairman {Part-time official)




The following Directors cease to be hold office during the financial year 2014-2015.

a. Vide Railway Board's letter No.2013/Infra/6/29 dated 08.01.2014, Sh Bhaskar Gupta, lndependent
Director completed his extended tenure of three months on 07 04.2014.
b. Vide Railway Board letter No 2010/E{O)!1/40/25 daled 28.07.2014, Sh. RK. Gupta, IRSE, General

Manager Eastern Railway reIiaQuishedr the Additional Charge of the post of Managing Director,

DFCCIL on 28.07.2014 (AN).

¢.  Sh. Anshuman Dir/PP ceases to hold the additional charge of Managing Director w.e.f 20.10.2014.

d. Sh. Anshuman Sharma, Dir/PP ceases fo hold the additional charge of Dirfinfra w.e.f 27.10.2014.

e. Sh. Amnendra Kumar, Ex-Chairman raitway Board, cease fo hold the post of part time
chairman/DFCCIL w.e.f 03.02.2015.

The following Directors hold the office after the closure of the financial year 2014-15.

a. Vide Railway Board's letter No.2008/infra/6/1 dated 25.04.2012, Sh. R.S. Sharma,

Independent Director completed his tenure of three years on 24.04.2015.

The composition of the Board of Directors, on the date of report, along with Directorships held by them and

their attendance in the Board meetings held during the financial year 2014-2015 and the last Annual General

Meeting is tabled below:

. S.No. | Category of

Directors

Name of
Directors/ Date of

Appointment

Number of
Directorships/
Chairmanships

in public
companies
including
'DFCCIL and
excluding private

Companies 1 &5

Totai No. of
Committee
Memberships/
chairmanships
in public
companies
including
DFCCIL and
excluding
private
companies {*4 &
8)

No. of
Board

Meetings

held during

2014-2015
 {during
' their
respeclive

tenures}

No. of
Board
meetings
attended
{during
their
respective

tenures)

Last AGM
attended

: {I) Chairman {Part-time official)




1. Chairman/ ) Sh. A K. Mitat {DIN- | As Part -Chairman-1 Nil NA
Railway Board | 07424281)
{Held office from
03.02.2015
2. ‘Chairman/ Sh. Arvnendra As Part -Time Nil Yes
| Raitway Board | Kumar Chairman-1
{held office {Held office from
upto 05.07.2013.{ DIN-
03.02.2015 06643537)
{1t} Whole-time Director
1{a) 1 Lookingafter | Sh.RK Guplta 1 il NA
Managing { DIN- 03525313)
Director {Held office from
{held office 10.05.2011) and
uplo looking after charge
28072014 | from 20.03.2014
AN}
1(b) | Additional Sh. Anshuman 1 Wil Yes
charge of Sharma { DIN-
Managing 03500815} {Held
Director office from
{held office 28.07.2015 AN)
upto
20.10.2014
AN)
1{c) | Managing Sh. Adesh Sharma 1 Nil NA
Director { DIN- 07022393)
I(Heid office from
20.10.2014).
2 Direclor Sh. Anshuman 1 Nil Yes
(Project Sharma { DIN-
Planning ) 03500815){Held
office from
05.04.2011)
3 Director Sh. H.D. Gujrafi 1 Nit Yes

{Operations &

{Held office from

anl




Business 29.11.2012) { DIN-
Development) | 03500815)

4 Director Sh. MK_ bittal, 1 Audit Committee 4 4 Yes
(Finance) (DIN- 02889021) (Member) - 1 |
(held offie from
16.00.2013) (FN)

["5(a) | tookingafter | Sh, Anshuman Nl Ni NA¥ NA* NA
i Director Sharma {DIN-
| (Infrastructure } | 03500815) (Held
{held office office from
uplo 11.03.2014)
27102044
! AN) . -
TSl | Dietor Sh, D.S. Rana ( DIN- 1 Ni 2‘(As Yes (As
(Infrastructure ) ?;‘e’ézgéi o OSDWC)& | OSDAWG)
27.10.2014 (AN) 2
: : Dirfinfra)
5 _
" (Il Director (Part-time official)
- 1. . | Advisor Sh, Girish Pillai 1 Audit Committee 4 . Yes (as a
(infrastructure | ( DIN- 00382088) (Chairman) - 1 Shareholder)
) IRailway {held office from
Board 14.11.2012)
P2 Advisor of Sh. Gajendra i Nil 4 0 No
Deputy Haldea { DIN-
Chairman, 02197994)
Planning (held office frcﬁm
Commmission  1-02.05.2008)
(IV)'independent Directors ( Part Time non official )
1 [PatTime | Prof Sh Bhaskar 1 Audit Commitiee | N.A, NA. NA
non-official Gupta (held office {Chairman) - 1
official (held  : from 23.11.2010)
office upto ( DIN- 03391044)
07.04.2014)




non-

Part Time Sh.R.S. Sharma 3 Audit Commitiee 4 3

official{held {held office from

office upto | 25.04.2012}
24.04.2015}

(DIN-00013208) . {Member} - 2

No

NOTES
1.

The Directorships being held by the Directors are within the limits laid down under section 165 of the
Companies Act, 2013. For reckoning the limit of public companies in which a-person can be
appointed as director, directorship in private companies that are either holding or subsidiary
Company of a pubﬁd company is included. _
The term "part-fime official” indicates the Govemment Nominee Direclors on the Board of DFCCIL
who are the officials of the Ministry of Railways and Planning Commission {Now NIT Aayogj. '

The term “part time non official” means the Independent Directors. 7

For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees on which a Director can serve , all public
limited companies, whether listed or not, is included. '

For the purpose of reckoning the limit for chairmanship/membership, the Audit Committee and the

" Shareholders’ Grievance Comrhitiee alone is taken.

The word “NA" denotes “Not Applicable™ as either the concerned Directors have joined the Board

after the financial year 2014-15 or the relevant parameter has not fallen due during their tenure.

During the financial year 2014-2015, the Board of Directors met four times to fransact the business. The

meetings of the Board of Directors of DFCCIL were held on foflowing dates as mentioned below:

S.No. Quarter Dates
1. | For the quarter ended June 2014 13.06.2014
2. | For the quarter ended September 2014 29.08.2014
3. | Forthe quarler ended December 2014 13.11.2014
4. | For the quarter ended March 2015 12.02.2015




Brief Resume of Directors appointed during the financial year 2014-2015.

i} Sh. Adesh Sharma, MD/DFCCIL, w.e.f. 20.10.2014.
Shri Adesh Sharma assumed the charge of Managin\c} Director of the Company on 20.10.2014. A Gold
Medallist in Civil Engineering from NIT, Allahabad, he belongs to the 1979 batch of Indian Railway Service
-of Engineers.

Before laking over the charge of Managing Director/ DFCCIL, he was working as Chief Administrative Officer
(Construction) in South Weslern Railway, Bangalore and has vast experience in civil engineering &
construction in rail transportation. He had worked in various capacities in Indian Railwayqs at divisional, zonal
and Railway Board leve! which includes Divisionaf Railway Manager/Hubli, Chief Engineer (Construction),
Executive Director (Vigilance)/Railway Board and Professor at Indian Railways Institute of Civit Engineering, -
Pune. .
While working as CAO/Construction, South Weslem Railway was awarded Railway Ministers Efficiency
Shield for Construction for fwo consecufive years in 2012-13 & 2013-14 for surpassing the targets by '25% &
for commissioning of 240 km of new line, gauge conversion and doubling works respectively. During his
tenure as DRM/Hubli in 2008-2010, the Division surpassed the loading target of 36 million fonnes and bagged
7 Shields including Overalf Efficiency Shield for South Western Railway.

ii) Sh. D.S. Rana; Dir{Infrastructure )/ DFCCIL, w.e.f. 27.10.2014

Shri D. §. Rana ook over as Director (Infrastructure), DFCCIL on 27.10.2014. Shri Rana is a Civil Engineer
with Post Graduale qualification in Project Management and befongs fo 1986 batch of Indian Railway Service
of Engineers and has held many positions in the Construction, Procurement & Vigilance wings of Cenlral

Railway. Prior to this assignment, he was working as Chief Project Manager in DFCCIL at Jaipur;

Shri Rana is with DFCCIL right from the inception stage and was one of the first officers to quit the coveted
Railway service and join the Company on permanent basis. Incidentally, he is aiso the first internal officer of
DFCCIL to have risen to the Board.

While working as CPM/Mumbai in DFCCIL, Shri Rana undertook many policy initiatives in the spheres of
RRP & Compensation Matrix for affecled PAPs lo ensure land acquisition in highly urbanized areas of
Mumbai. He is also credited with obtaining 2 multitude of statutory Environmental Clearances for the project

i Maharashira, which led to timely Financial Closure of Phase-li leg of Westem DFC, in partnership with




JICA. A Treatise written by Shri Rana on Environmental & Social issues has been widely circulated to various

Infrastructure Ministries & PSUs to serve as a hand book for the Pro}ect Managers.

iit} Sh. AK.Mital, Chairman/ DFCCIL, w.e.f. 03.02.2015

Shri Ashok Kumar Mital, Chairman Railway Board, has taken over as Chairman Railway Board & ex-Officio
Principal Secretary to the Government of India on 1st January 2015. Prior to this, he was Member Staff and
Ex-officio Secretary to Government of India in Railway Board. Born on 7th July, 19586, Shei Mital is a Bachelor

of Engineering (Hons).

An Officer of 1976 Balch of Indian Railways Service of Stores (IRSS), Shi AK. Mital has worked on various

important posis on Indian Railways. He was Director/Stores, Executive Director/Vigilance and Executive T '

Director/Stores in Railway Board, Ministry of Railways. He has worked as Chief Material Manager in Northern -
Railway. He was Divisional Railway Manager of Izzatnagar Division in North Eastern Railway and Controlfer
of Stores in South Central Raitway, Secunderabad and Diesel Locomotive Works/ Varanasi. Before joining -
Railway Board as Member Staff, he was General Manager of South Western Railway/ Hubli. He has also

held additional charge of three major Railways viz., Southern Railway, South Central Railway.

6. Audit Committee
Composition of the Audit Committee
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors was originally consfituted on 14.03.2008 and was

reconstituted from time lo time. The composition of the Audit Committee as on the date of report is as follows.

S.No. Member Position Date of holding the membership of
the Committee
1| Sh. Girish Pillai Member 15.01.2013
Government Nominee Director | |
"2 | Sh.M K Mittal Member 13.06.2014
Director (Finance) '
3 | Sh. Anshuman Sharma Member 28.04.2015
Director(PP) |




The Terms of Reference of the Committee as prescribed by the Board in its meeting heid on
14.03.2008.

L]
-

To discuss with the auditors periodically about internal control systems.
To discuss and decide about the scope of audit including the observations of auditors.

To review the half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board and ensure

compliance of internal contro! systems.

To investigate into any matter relating to financial management including the audit report.
Any other matter brought to the notice of the Audit Commitiee by Board of Directors.
To appoint an intémnal Auditor and to set the terms and conditions of appointment, including the

remuneration payable (added vide item no. 4 of 12" Board Meeting held on 16.6.2009)

Additional Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee re-constituted on 25.06.2010;

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

1.

7.

Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financia! information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient, and credible.
Recommending o the Board the fixation of audit fees.
Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.
Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval.
Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956,
« Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
« Major accounting enltries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;
« Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
» Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements:
» Disclosure of any related party fransactions; and
 Qualifications in the draft audit report.
6. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.
Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the internal

contro! systems.




10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

7.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing, and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure,
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/for auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors/auditors/agencies into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a faifure of internal contro! systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditers before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit
as well as post-audit discussion fo ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defauilts in the payment to the depositors, debeniure hoiders,
shareholders (in case of non -payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.

To review the fofiow up action on the audit observations of the C&AG audit.

To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of Committee on Public Undertakings

(COPU) of the Parliament.
Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal auditor and

the Board of Directors
Review afi related party transactions in the company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee may

designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing refated party transactions.

Explanation: The term “related party transactions” shall have the same meaning as contained in the

Accounting Standard 18, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

18.

19.

20.

Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness of
coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:

The adequacy of internal controis including computerized information system controis and security,

and
Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor, together with

the management responses.
Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent auditor:

Significant findings during the year, including the status of previocus audit recommendations

- Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the scope of activities or

access 1o required information.




21. Carrying out any.other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit,

Additional Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee re-constituted on 07.08.2012 and are

being retained;

Chapter-4 of the DPE guidelines on Corporate Govemance deals with the Audit Committee. Clause 4.5
~of the chapter requires that the following information shall be reviewed by the Audit Committee.

a) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.

b) Statement of related party transactions submitted by Management.

c) Management letters/letters of internal control weakness issued by the statutory auditors.

d) Internal audit reports relating fo internal control weakness.

e) The appointment and removal of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be piaced before the Audit

Committee; and
f) Certification/declaration of financiat statements by the Chief Executive/Chief Finance Officer.

Additional Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee in terms of section 177(4) of the Companies
Act, 2013.
1. Every Audit Committee shall act in accordance with the terms of reference specified in writing by the
Board which shall, infer alia, include,—
(i) the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;
(ify review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
iify examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

iv) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

{

(

(v} scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(vi) valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

{vii) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

(viiiy monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

(ix} to oversee the vigil mechanism and to provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees and directors who avail of the Audit Committee and in case of repeated frivolous compiaints
by a director or an employee, the Audit Committee may take suitabie action against the concerned director

or employee including reprimand.



Powers of the Audit Committee:
Commensurate with its role, the Audit Committee should be invested by the Board of Directors with sufficient
powers, which should inciude the following:

(i) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

{ii) To seek information on and from any employee.

(i) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.
(iv) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

(v) To protect whistie blowers.

(vi} The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internai control systems, the scope
of audit, including the cbservations of the auditors and review of financial statement before their
submission to the Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors
and the management of the company.

{vii) All powers, as may be required, for executing the Scope of the Audit Committee.

(viii) The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation o the items specified

in sub-section (4) of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, or referred to it by the Board and for this

purpose shall have power to obtain professional advice from external sources and have full access to

information contained in the records of the company.

During the year under review, the Committee met 5 times on the following dates 10.06.2014, 18.07.2014,
29.08.2014, 13.11.2014 & 12.02.2015.

The attendance of the members of the Commitiee during 2014-2015 is produced below:

Member Position Meetings held™ | Meetings attended **

Sh. MK Mittal Member 5 5
Sh.R.S. Sharma Member 5 4

'Sh. Girish Pifai Member 5 5

** “Meetings held'- denotes the number of 'meetings held during the tenure of the member of the Committee,

*"Meetings attended’- denotes the number of meetings attended by the member during his fenure.




7. Remuneration Committee

i)

In terms of Chapter 5 of the DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, the Remuneration Committee
of the Board was reconstituted. The Remuneration Committee of the Board comprised of Sh. Girish
Pillai, Nominee Director as Chairman, Sh. M.K. Mittal, Dir/Fin and Sh. H.D. Gujrati, DifOP&BD, as its
Members. Remuneration Committee will decide the annual bonus/variable pay pool and policy for its
distribution across the executives and non-unionized supervisors, within the prescribed limits. The

Committee will be headed by an Independent Director.”

Remuneration of Directors

DFCCIL, being a wholly owned Government Company under Companies Act, 2013, the whole-time
Directors of the Company are appointed by the President of India through Ministry of Railways. The
functional Directors so appointed, draw remuneration under Industrial Dearness Allowance (IDA) pattern
of pay scale pre-determined by the Government and as per the terms and conditions issued by the
Government of India from.time to time. The IDA Pay scales (2007) and basket of allowances has been
implemented in DFCCIL.

The part-time official {Government Nominee) Directors on the Board of the Company do not draw any
remuneration from the Company. They draw remuneration from the Government only as Government
officials. The part time non-official Directors (Independent) draws the sitting fee for the Board/Sub-
Committee meetings attended during the financial year.

The detail of sitting fee paid to the Part-time non official Directors for the financial year 201415 is

detailed beiow.

'S.No.|  Name of the Director No. of Board/Sub- Sitting Fee {In?)

Committee Meetings
attended”

ShriR.S. Sharma 3 (BM) 1,80,000/-*

*This includes no. of Board meetings (BM) /Sub-Committee meeting of the Board {Audit Committee Meetings
(AC) and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR)). The sitting fee includes Rs. 20000/ payable

for 2014-2015.




The detail of remuneration paid to the whole time Directors for the year 2014-2015 is detailed below.

'S, | Name of Director Salary & Other Benefits | Performance | Total {In%)
No Allowances Perks finked incentives
............. (In X) {In %) o 1n3)
1 | ShriR. K Gupta 31.000.00 - 31.000.00
(Managing Director)
2. | Sh. Adesh Sharma 14,26,876.00 - - 14,26,876.00
(Managing Director)
3. | Sh.H. D Gujrati 28,01,476.00 | 1,99,209.00 - 30,00,685.00
Director (Opn & BD) '
"4 |ShD.S.Rana 208530100 | 285,154.00 - 23.80,455.00
Director ( infra)
5| Sh Anshuman Sharma | 27,40.919.00 | 1.43,047.00 - 28 83,966.00
Director (PP}
6. | MK Mittal Director | 25,03,289.50 | 2,00,930.00 . 27 04.219.00
- (Finance)
Total 1,15,98,861.50 | 8,28,340.00 1.24.27 201 50
Note: o |

1, 'Other Benefits’ includes Lease Rent, Medical reimbursement, Foreign Service Contribution, Tax on

perquisites borne by Employer, Employer Contribution to PF .

5. General Meetings.

Annual General Meetings .
The Arnual General meetings of the Company are held at New Delhi, where the registered office of the Company

is situated. The details of such meetings held during the fast three years are as under:

~ AGM Year Venue Bate T

6th | 2011-2012 | Corporate Office-Board Room, 5th Floor Pragati 26.09.2012 15:30 Hrs.
Maidan Metro Station Building Complex, New Dethi-
110001

7th 2012-2013 | Committee Room, 2" Floor, Rail Bhawan, Raisina | 27.05.2013 1230 Hrs
Road, New Delhi-110001

gt 2013-2014 Committee Room, 2™ Fioor, Rail Bhawan, Raisina 19.09.2014 16:00 Hrs.
Road, New Delhi-110001




Detail of special resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs.

AGM Year | Subject Matter of the Special Resolution Date Time
gth 2011-2012 Nil 26.09.2012 | 15:30 Hrs.
7 2012-2013 Ni 27.09.2013 | 12.30 Hrs.
g | 2013-2014 | Section 180(1) (c) -Power to borrow money in excess |  19.09.2014 | 16:00 Hrs.

of the prescribed fimit.

6. Disclosures

7.

A

There has not been a reported materially significant related party transaction except the
remuneration to key management personnel as disclosed vide note 28 to the financial statements.
The Company has not been imposed penalty by any statutory authority as a result of non-
compliance.

The Company has complied with the guidelines on Corperate Gevernance issued by Department of
Pubiic Enterprises. in accordance with the guidelines, DFCCIL evolved a Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics for its Board Members and Senior Management Personnel and has included Corporate
Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis Report in the Directors Report for the year
2014-2015.

All items of expenditure debited in the books of accounts of DFCCIL are for the purpose of project
execution entrusted to DFCCIL and are related to project execution.

There are no personal expenses incurred for the Board of Directors.

The Net administrative expenses as a percentage of total expenses have decreased from 5.24% in

2013-14 to 4.14% in 2014-15.

Corporate Communication

The increase democratization of the development process is reflected in higher public expectations for

participation, transparency and accountability. In this scenario, the role of communication in large

infrastructure project has tremendously increased. The success of implementing and executing of such mega

projects lies with understanding the organization and its stakehoiders. Communication plays a vital role to

facilitate dialog among all stakehoiders and accessing social and political risk and benefits of the projects.

The communication also helps the management in decision making on the development and management

of large infrastructure projects. These projects are very sensitive in nature and require special attention to




the political, social, environmental and other challenges that are essential to successful execution and
implementation of the project.

DFCCIL has formufated its Communication Strategy and drawn an effective action plan based on its
Communication Strategy to meet communication needs of its stakeholders. Important updates and
information of major events are regularly shared through Press Releases along with respective photographs.
During the period 13 Press releases issued on various occasions was given wide coverage by many national
newspapers. News items regarding progress of work in DFCCILL are being regularly published in magazines
and newspapers. Apart from this media interaction through inferviews of Senior Officers of DFCCIL have also
been arranged and published in media.

in view of construction activities timely publishing of tenders, notices and statutory land acquisition
notifications is very important, A total 235 tenders & notifications were published in international, nationaf and
regional dailies during the period.

Besides this, DFCCIL has adopted new and innovative ways to inform and educate its stakeholders specially
PAPs through creative Radic Spots. A 30 seconds radic spots was produced and broadcasted on FM
channels of major cities along both the corridors on weekends at Prime time on Big FM, Radio Mirchi, FM
Gold, Vividh Bharti and other primary channels of respective areas to increase awareness amongst various
stakeholders.

Amoeng permanent features of internal communication s the quarterly newsletter- DFC News of which entire
gontent is generated internally and circutated among various stakeholders like Ministries, State Govt. and
other important offices besides its own employees.

To improve efficiency & skills of official in communication 2 communications workshops were organized by
DFCCIL during the financial year in which 75 participants were given training on Branding, Media
Familiarization, Communication and Perception Management.

To create and maintain good brand image of company, DFCCIL participated in Vibrant Gujarat Global Trade
Show organized on 71 to 13" January 2015. An exhibition stall was set up showcasing the project received
overwhelming response as over two lacs visitors including professionals visited the stall.

Many steps have been taken to strengthen internai communication. Nominated officer has been designated
to coordinate PR works in all CPM offices. Corporate film showcasing iconic infrastructure project of DFCCIL
has been prepared and are being shown in offices of CPMs including Corporate Office, naticnal and
international exhibitions and conferences. Meetings with PAPs are being organized regularly at all CPM
offices to understand the problem of PAPs and to clear m%éunderstanéiﬂgs about the proiect. To assist

stakeholders FAQs have also been prepared and uploaded on DFCCIL website.
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8. Audit Qualifications
The replies of the Management on the qualifications of the Auditor's including Secretarial Auditor

forms the part of the Board's report.

9. Training of Board Members
DFCCIL is concerned fo take various training programs for its officers/ employees. The detail of

training of officers and Empicyees is being dealt separately in Corporate Governance Report. in order fo
acquaint the Board Members, presently the Corporation has adopted the practice of fumishing a set of
documents/ beoklets to a Director on his/ her joining the Board. The set of documents provided includes
Annua! Reports for the last financial years, Memorandum and Articles of Association, a copy of the
Memorandum of Understanding along with MOU targets and its achievements. This provides the basic
informations about the Company to the incumbent. Besides that Board Members and Senicr Management
personnel are nominated for various training programs, from time fo time, including basic induction fraining

organized by Institute of Public Enterprises and other Training courses i.e training at {SB Mohali.

10. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
The certificate duly signed by the Chief Executive Officer and CFQ as presented to Board of Directors, is

annexed as "Annexure E-1" to the report.

11. Code of Business Conduct & Ethics

The Company has in place the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Level Management
duly approved by the Board of Birectors. At 36" meeting of the Board, the Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics for Board members and Senior Management which came into force w.e.f. 15t day of April 2009 was
replaced by the Mode! Code of Conduct as suggested in DPE guidelines. In terms of Code of Conduct for
Directors and Senior Management Personnel, the annual affirmation that Code of Conduct has been
complied with has been obtained from all the Board members and Senior Management Personnel. The Code
of Conduct is also posted on the Website of the Company www.dfccil.qov.in. A declaration signed by the

Managing Director affirming the comp#iance with the code of conduct by the Board Members and Senior

Management Personnel during 2014-2015 is placed at Annexure “E1",



12. Whistle Blower Policy
DFCCIL believes in conduct of its affairs with highest standards of professionalism, honesty and

integrity and is committed to ensure ethical behaviour by all its employees. The company therefore believes
in creating a culture where it should be safe for all employees to raise concerns about any unethical practices
or misconduct. The Company had formulated a Whistie Blower Policy. This poficy provides a framewoerk to
enable employees wishing to raise a concern about serious iregularities within the Company without fear of

victimisation and covers protected disclosures by employees of DFCCIL including those on deputation.

13. Compliance Certificate
The Certificate from a practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of the conditions of

Corgorate Governance in accordance with the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises forms

the part of the Annual Report. Annexure “E3".
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- Declar anon by Managing Dtrcctor regardmg comphancc with the Code of Business

and Ef.thS Conduct by Boa rdwmembéns and Senior Mauagemcnt during financial Year

2014-2015.

1. Adesh Si.larma, Managing Director, Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation
of India Limited. do hereby declare that all the functional members of the Board of

1 ) . .
Directors and the Senior Managem%:nt Personnel have affirmed compliance of the

Code of Business and Ethics Corzduc:t during ZQ 14-2015.

Place: New Delhi o o ' (Adcsh Sharma)
Date: 12.06.2015 . : Managing Director

oy
™
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#mm 5.9, .
Dedicated Frelght Corridor Corporation of India Ltd.

MANAGiNG DIRECTOR AND DIRECTOR FINANCE CERTIFICATION

x

We have reviewed the Financial Statements including the Balancc sheet, Statcmcnt of Profit &
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year 2014-15 and to the best of our knowledge

and belief ;

()
(i)

" (i)

(iv)

)

(vi)

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading; - ..

Thcsc statements together present/a true and fair view of the Company’s aff‘alrs and are in
comphance with cx:stmg accounu'ng standards, applicable Jaws and regulations:

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the

- Company during the year which are fraudu!cnt, illegal or in violation of the Company s code

of conduct;

We accept responsxbahty for establlshmg and mamtammg internal conlrols for finaricial
reporting and that we have cva!uéted the effectiveness of the intemal control systems of the
company pertaining to financial rcbortmg We have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit
Committee deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls of which we are
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies;

We have indicated to Aud:tors and the Audit Committee changes in Accounting Pohc:es
during the year, and that the same have been disclosed in the Notes to the Financial

Statements; and

There was no instance of fraud nor there has been involvement of the Management or &n
employee having a significant role in the Company's internal contro! system over financial
reporting, of whxch We are aware, .

Pt w
: . "“2"*“"'
L Mitta Adesh Sharma
Dlrector Finance Managing Director

Place: New Eieihi
- Dated:

7

Regd Off : 5"‘ Floor, Pragatl Maldan Metro Station Bullding Complex, New Delhi - 110001
CIN- UBD232D1L.2006G01155068, Tel.: +91-11-23454700, Fax: +91-11-23454701, Website : dfccil. gov.in



Arntrani- €3° AKG & Co.

Company Secretaries

Acfdress A-16 Jitar Nagar, Parwona Road, Delhi-110051
. Phone: 011-22025417, 9312210264
E-mail: guplooshish75@gmail.com

Tosthe Members of

M/5. Dedicated Freight Corridor Lcrpomth\ of tndia Limited
Regpd Ofiee: 5% Floor, DMREC Comples

Pragali dMatdan, Nes Betis - ]

REG:  COMPLIANCE '.CERTIFICATF Wll’ll RI‘!‘H{T‘N{‘F 10 _COMPLIANCE OF. CONDITIONS _QF

CORPORATE.GOVERNANCE UNDER GUIDELINES ON rgm’ogm:r;, QQ\'FRNAN(‘[‘ FOR CENTRAL
ILLLB.L}_(;;E_QZLQ.._-JQ&’.&!SA,,,_M.

g 1. This Centitice is in accordanee witll u)m;)h.sm v of conditions of Corporie Govemanes by M/y,
Dedicated . Freight Corridor Gorporation nf Indin Limited; {Hcr{:m‘)ftcr referred to us
{,umpany") fur thie Financil yvear ended un 31 Mareh, 2015 us stipulated w0 the Guidelines
isyued for Ceniral Public Sector Enterfirises 2010 effective from May 2()1{) {Hereinatier
refereed to as “(.mdchnc\ i

O The Emepdionce of cosditiong of Corparate Governance is the responsibility of the Maamesiens

My examination s lintited to reviele of procedures uml implementain thereat, aduped by e
Compitny for ensurag the compliande of Use conditions of Corporate Goverisiee s stipulatesd e the

suid puidelines, [U neither an nudit and vor an ckpression of opinion of the Ananced statemens e
the Compiany. My respumsibiily s o cairy vot o examimttion, on the basiy of my predos s
pudgorent su ax Lo awand 2o x\nh e assurince of the correciness and uamplelvlu\\ uithe vecinods
tay the pm;mwnl this certilicanls

I have ohnned il the isturmation dnd explanations whick to the best ul my M\(a'.‘-'icd CORUTIR [ P01 PRY

werp newv..u'v for ihe puorposes of oportification and have !!u:n muvulw} with sucl: ey ol
~dutdmtenty, cortiflcationg eteas had been required by mie,

e

4o D eertily that in cespeet- ot the sdoresild financial yourcded 319 Mareh 2015, e carspeany s
vtmphed wath visvious provisions of the Guidelines in s Corporate Guveraance Repont eXCEPH:

14 4

u} Chuese No. 3.2 relating to composition of Buurd of Directors ~ Independent and Numinee

Directors.”

I} Cluuse No, 3.6 velating to Integration and aligament of Risk Managemernt System

Uhereby stte that such comyptiunce is Aeither i assurance o8 tn the future viability of the Gonggo e
ter the officiency or effectiveness with whueh e mangement bas vonducted the b e e
Laimprny, :
e /_4;-
LT snigh Kumar Gupte
o d FC"‘ LLB,, B.Sc ()
Ashish Rl Gupta FOS-5439, C.P. 1 685F
CompantSecretary
Phaer - ohhi
Prle cOSOE20S




Annexure “F”
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAYLSIS REPORT
Industry Structure and Developments

The overall economic development of the Country could be measured with the development of different
sectors of the economy. The railway map of India is a network of veins that pump life-giving blood into the
heart of India's economy. Indian Railways is a unique integrator of modern India, with a major role in its
socio-economic development.

Rail transportation is the backbone of our country’s transportation infrastructure. Rail transport must be
made reliable, comfortable and safe and benchmarked to globat standards. Bhartiya Raif must substantially .
regain the market share of freight transport. To fulfil the objectives, DFCCIL, a *Special Purpose Vehicle™ is
aimed to undertake planning and development, construction, maintenance and operation of Dedicated
Freight lines. .

in his speech, “he mentioned about the DFCCIL project ~ “The implementation of two dedicated freight
corridor projects on Eastern and Western roules is gathering pace. We will farget to award 750 km of civil
contracts and 1300 km of system contracts in 2015-16. Durgawafi-Sasaram, a 55 km section of Easlern
DFC is proposed to be completed in the current year. Preliminary Engineering cum Traffic Survey (PETS)
for four other DFCs is in progress and will be completed this year. We intend to explore the idea of

construction of DFC feeder routes through private participation.”

The Vision and the Mission of the Company is as follows:

VISION

To create a partnership with IR for retaining and expanding the market share of rail through efficient and

reliable service with customer focus.

MISSION '

As the dedicated agency to make the vision info reality, DFCCIL's mission is

1) Tobuild a corridor with abpropriate technology that enables Indian Railways to regain,ilts market share

of freight trénspoﬁ by creating additional c:apa'c'it'y and guaranteeing efficient, reliable, safe and
cheaper options for mobility to its customers.

2)  To support the Government's iniliatives towards ecological sustainability by encouraging users to

adopt Railways as the most environment friendly mode for their transport requirements.



Capital Expenditure on Project Execution

As on 31stMarch, 2015, the Cumulative expendiii:re on Project Execution is T 6130.24 Crore which includes
Fixed Assets T 12.24 Crore, Capital Work in progress T 327242 Crore, Assets under Development
¥ 9.31 Crore and Capital advances ¥ 2836.27 Crore. The éross expenditure during the year 2014-15 on
project execution is ¥ 1961.03 Crore which includes tangible assets ¥2.85 Crore, assets under
development 1.68 Crore, Capital Advances ¥ 245.40 Crore and Capital Work in Progress ¥1711.10 Crore.

Strengths . .

Land Acquisition in the project continues to be its halimark of strength. The acquisition process has been
moving smoothly as a result of a cautious and sensitive approach with the Project Affected People {PAPs)
and intense frequent engagement with the State Revenue and other officials.

implementation of electrified DFC itself is an environment friendly and energy saving activity and a méjor
strength. On environmental front, necessary pre-project statutory clearances are beihg obtained for forest
land diversion, CRZ, AS! protected monument, other Eco-sensitive zone. Permission to cut trees within the
right of way including those in Téj Trapezium Zone {TTZ), mangrove areas, periphery of Sanjay Gandhi
National Park haven obtained in all the states.

Capacity building for Social and Envirbnment Management Unit (SEMU} have been done. SEMU dept. of
EDFC & WDFC are headed by separate General Manager supported by a team of professional experts.
Similar capacity building of SEMU has been done in the field level through training and designation of APM
for Social & Environmental activities.

Each corridor now is headed by separate General Managér supported by a team of professional experts.
Similar capacity building of SEMU has been done in the field level as well where designated APM has been
positioned for EDFC-1, EDFC-2 & EDFC-3 for Social & Enwvironmental activities.

ror construction phase- manning & positioning of adequate number of experienced officers have been done.

The team with experience of Railway working provide valuable strength to the organization.

Weakness o -

Schedule of the implementing agencies has been affected due lo the time involved in the obtaining of
statutory clearances for the procurement of construction material under the various Rules. Continuous foflow
up with the authority is being maintained to expedite the matter. Delay in obtaining various statutory
clearance by the contractor and his subcontractors could lead to risk of reputation to the project.

DFC requires 11539 hectares of Land spread over 3376 Kms for both Corridor. On the Eastem Corridor,
DFC alignment passes through the States of West Bengal, Jharkhand, Bihar, Uttar Pradesh, Haryana, and
Punjab. The Westem Corridor passes through the State of Uttar Pradesh, Haryana, Rajasthan, Gujarat, and




Maharashtra. The Acquisition of Land being the subject matter of the concemed States is a biggest
challenge faced by the Company. The Land is to be acquired in terms of various guidelines issued by State
Governments/Zonal Railways, Central Government, provision of NRRP 2007 and requirement of funding
agencies with respect to environmental and social consideratiéns and expectations of project affected
parties. With the passage of “the Right fo Fair Compensation and Transparency in Land Acquisition,
Rehabilitation & Resettlement Act, 2013 followed by the Amendment Ordinance, the provisions of the new
act with regard to compensation & R&R are applicable to all acquisition being undertaken by DFCC from
01.01.2015. A new Entitlement Matrix has been issued by Railway Board as per the provisions of the new
Act and has come into force from 01,01.2015. Time bound execufion of the projectis hindered on account

of delays in getting approvals from the concerned authorities.

Opportunity

Implementation of green field DFC project in environment friendly manner encountering reality in the field is
an opportunity to replicate the same elsewhere in future DFC project. .

DFC project.wiil bring abouta quéntum increase in rail transport capacity, thereby providing faster movement
within guaranteed transit fime, and operational efficiency, cbntributing to national economy both directly and
indirectly. ' | |

Successfut completion of the work is expected to give a new dimension to Rail freight transportation by rail
in the country which ultimately will bring down "Transport Logistics” cost in the country.

The project provides a great opportunity for shiffing of road traffic to rail and thereby increasing rail share in
the total transport.

New opportunities arising from *Make in India initiative, plan for Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor (DMIC)
and (ADKIC) Amvritsar Kolkata Industrial Corridor, is expected to provide a big impetus fo manufacturing
sector in the country. DFC with its infrastructure advantages, Higher-vdiumetréc and fonnage and Higher
Speed capabilities has a major edge over other compeling mode of transpor. For this development of
logistics terminal and wagons-are pre-requisites.

The Company shall build Marketing team within organizationat structure of DFCCIL and coordinate with '
Industry to create handling capacity within DFCC'IL network/IR network. Awareness regarding advantages
of rail transport like fuel efficient, environment friendly, faster delivery, economical, reduced inventory cost
in comparison to road sector will help in world class logistivs service providers to parficipate in development

of world class logistics infrastructure.



In order to capture the growth in this sector, Company shouid proactively encash alf opportunities to form
JVs with the logistic provider in the markets. In this direction, beginning has been made with the Company
entering into a Memorandum of Understanding with Infand Water Authority of India.

Threats

in order to. ensure delivery of the project on time, coordinated efforts are required among all the stake holders
and the parties involved in the projects i.e. Ministry of Railways, NiTi Aayog, Ministry of Finance, State
Governments, Japan International Co-operation Agency, World Bank - and each must performits obligations
in time to ensure that DFCs get constructed in time and within the estimated completion cost. Despite of the
coordinated efforts, the implementation of the project is not barred from threats arising out of internal and
external factors. During the construction phase, it is really challenging to hand over encumbrance free land
to the contractor. Relocation of different utiiitiés from the alignmeni, before construction schedule and
ensuring safely of Indian Railways Assets during construction in the parallel section are posing a big threat.
Though the Company has built its own organizational strength, for proper impleémentation of the Project,
avaltability of qualified and experienced staff by the contractor and project management consultant is to be

ensured.

Strategies

Land Acquisition in the project shall continue to be a challenge but at the same time hallmark of strength of
the organization, and to further enhance the acquired capabilities of the organization leamt over a period of
time through trials & tribulations, the Company has adopted and pursued the simple strategy of ensuring
compliance with National Rehabilitation and Resettiement Policy adopted by the Government of India. DFC
- addresses needs and concerns of the Project Affected Persons (PAPs) by emphasizing their participation
and by extending necessary support to them in Reseltlement and Rehabilitation process. For redressal of
grievances related with Rehabilitation and Resettlement Plan, an Ombudsman has already been appointed.
. Besides Arbitrators have been appointed in each District, District Level Grievance Redressal Commitiee
have also been formed in EDFC-1 & EDF'C-_2._The process of Land Acquisition ‘Es stretched over 9 Stafes.
In order to ensure the timely and hassle free éﬁquisition. the State Level Coordination Committee have been
formed headed by Chief Secretaries of the states for monitoring the progress of land acquisition in the states
and_to have a better liaisioning with the state machinery.

The Company is stepping ahead in streamlining the current system and procedures. DFCCIL under Worid
Bank guidance selected an T firm for s ERP (SAP) implementation. The project aims at the cenlralized
implementation of a sofiware solution integrating Financial Management, Human Resource Management, Project
Management, Enterprise Asset Management, Land Acquisition Information Management, Geographical



information Management, Portal, Document management system etc. The ERP solution would manage the
most critical functions of the organization. The systein would expedite decision making, ensure better planning and
co-ordination between diflerent functions, better data management, effective reporting, knowledge management,

etc. Time lost in accessing information will be reduced

Outlook

The Company is looking forward to create a state of arl world class infrastructure that will have the capability
of bringing about a paradigm shift in the fransportation sector in India. The Company is commitied to ensure
the quality as well as saféty in the implementation of the project. In this regard, steps are taken bo give

adequate training to field staff to acquaint them with best international construction practices.

Road Ahead
DFCCIL is committed lo its motio of 'SSS' - *Sincerity, Speed and Success' which would lead to fulfiliment

of Organization's Mission, Vision and Objectives.

Risk and Concerns _

The Company has developed the Enterprise Risk Management Framework which has been approved by
the Audit Commitiee. The Enterprise Risk Management Framework has been implemented with effect from
15t December 2014. The top 20 risks each perceived at this stage during "Planning & Construction Phase”
and “Operation Phase” have been identified and prioritized. Mitigation Plan for these top 20 risks has also
been formulated. The Risk so identified and Mitigation Plan so designed would be reviewed and updated
on periodical basis through risk identification-and prioritization workshops. A Risk Management structure
has already been defined, which comprise of a Risk Management Commitiee consisting of Funclional as
well as Independent Directors, a Chief Risk Management Coordinator reporting to Risk Management
Committee, Heads of various deparments such as Civil, S&T, IT, Administration, Electrical, Operation,
Finance etc. and Chief Project Managers would act as Risk & Miigaion Plan Owner and would be
responsible for risk identification, its prioritization and for framing the mitigatién plan. To ensure that there
are appropriate confrols in place for tﬁéﬁsk management activiies a ﬁsk monitoring and assurance
mechanism through MIS has been provided as a part of Enterprise Risk Management Framework fo assess

the effectiveness of mitigation plan for a particular risk.
Internal Control Systems

In any organization, internal control being an integral process, effected by an entity's Management and

personnel is designed to address risks and to provide reasonable assurance that in pursuit of entity's
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mission, the general objectives of execﬁting the operations more orderly, ethically, economically, efficiently
and effectively is achieved and the resources are safeguarded against loss, misuse and damage. The
company has internal systems and processes in place, which ensures the execution of operation more
orderly, ethically, economically, efficiently, and effectively, which is adequale and commensurate with the
size of the Company. However, Internal Control being the ongoing process, the Mariagement is committed
towards its continuous improvement. In order to ensure that, all the required inteémal control systems and
processes are in place and are operating effectively and to assess the shortcomings in the existing internal
control systems and procedures, steps that have 1o be laken to strengthen the internal systems and

processes. Accordingly, Audit Committee has approved to conduct a study on the adequacy of Intemal '
Control systems in the Company. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors also reviews the reports
of the Internal Auditor, comments of the Statutory Auditor and the Comptrolier and Auditor General of India.
The Management reviews the ﬂndinés and recommendations of the auditors, takes corrective actions

wherever necessary, and monitors the implementation of the recommendations.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 7

During the year under reView, the Industrial Relation remained peaceful and harmonious. BFCCIL
commemorated its 9th foundation dayon 30.10.14 in its precincts in corporate office at Pragati Maidan metro
station comp!ek. Festivities lent ceremonial touch to organization's -annual event which was attended by
Chalrman, DFCCIL & Railway Board, Senior Official from Railway Board & DFCCIL's officials and staff. On
this occasion CRB facilitated DFCCIL's employees by distributing annual awards for their distinguish
service. Anti-terrorism day was observed 6n 21.05.14 & Sadbhawna Diwas was observed on 20.08.14.

National integration pledge was administered on 19.11.14 amid presence of all officers/staff of the company.
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND DEVELOPMENT

DFCCIL was awarded the SAP ACE Award 2014, on 13% August, 2014 asa Spedaf Recognition for leveraging technology
in the core business process. This being the first case for any public sector us_adé{iaking where  SAP solution has been
" leveraged for its core process of Land Abdﬁisiﬁon and integrated the same with GIS and CAD solution both in the Corporate
Office and in all the 14 CPM offces across Eastem and Westem Coridors.

DFCCHL is now undergoing the final stage of SAP implementation. Almost alf the testing is complete and staff and officers
have started working in SAP.A state of the art Data center has been set up at 4th Floor of DFCCIL Comporate Office. This
Data Centre has been connected with all the 14 CPM locations by using either VPN or MPLS (Multi-Protocol Label
Switching) based WAN (wide area network). Thus all CPM offices in both Eastern and Western corridor are



connected fo the DFCCIL's data center. DFCCIL is considering shifing Data Center to a spacious locaticn along with its
capacity augmentatiqn. Also Disaster Recovery Data Center proposal has been initiated.

Operational Acceptance Phase is under process. Operational tesling of significant portion has been completed by
HR Department and they are working regularly through SAP. Petty and small bills and payroll are processed
" through SAP.

Almostall DFCCIL employees have been issued ESS {Employee Self Service} licenses. Thus through the Portal each
employee can access his pay slip, apply for leave and access various user manuals and other information as well.
The project confractors and consultants are also accessing the ERP system through VPN for online submission
of bills.

SAP implementation is progressing under the directions of the Steering Commitiee, Process Owners, Core Team
members. Since SAP implementation is a dynamic process, any future requirement s will be addressed with the

help of users.

Environment Protection and Conseﬁation

Environmentally proactive approach of DFCCIL is reflected from the initiatives taken with DFC alignments
being so se‘tected'that land acquisition, forest land diversion and impact to environment is minimum possible,
whére it cannot be avoided. Environment Impact Assessment studies have been conducted for Eastern and
Westermn Freight Corridor to meet the World Bank & JICA safeguard poiicies.

All major environmental clearances except that of Aravalii Eco-sensitive zone have been obtained. The
process for clearance for Aravalli region in the district of Alwar, Rajasthan has been initiated. Details of
Mewat & Gurgaon, Haryana are being compiled for the Same. The clearance under the Coastal Regulation
Zone Nofification has been obtained, A GPR survey was conducted through HT/Kanpur in Gulistanpur of
Greater Noida area al the cost of DFCCIL has now been completed and DFCCIL shall be getting the
clearance very soon as no ancieqt remains have surfaced beneath'<_the alignment in the study.

During the year 2'014-1‘5, Environmental Assessment (EA) Report including Environmental Management
Plan (EMP) of Pilkhani-Sahnewal (Ludhiana) and Khurja-Dadri sections of EDFC have been prepared and
finalized, awaiting final approval from World Bank. These draft EA reports have been cleared by World Bank

for uploading on DFCCIL website for wide publicity.



The implementing agencies have prepared their own site specific SHE Plan based on DFCCIL's SHE
Manual and Environmental Management Plan {EMP) for Lot 101, 102 & 103. The contraclor has obtained
ISC-14001 EMS & OHSAS 18000 certification for its construction activities in alf Lots of EDFC-1, which are
valid till November, 2017. Regutar monitoring of SHE & EMP implementation are carried out and reports are
generated, DFCCIL officials, PMC officials & SESMRC of the EDFC are inspecting work sites regularly as
per schedule. Site Safety committee meetings are held. Construction works are going on without any major
incident reported. All regulatory compliances are also being ensured through the implementing agencies.

Officials of DFCCIL were trained on EIA & SIA with assistance of Centre for Science and Environment (CSE)
in August, 2014. An experience sharing workshop of all linear infrastructure projects conducted by CSE with

assistance from World Bank on Environmental management in February, 2015.

MD, DFCCIL issued a message based on theme “Raise your voice, not the sea level" on the occasion of
World Environment Day on 5% June, 2014. This was disseminated widely. Fire Service Day was observed
at work sites on 14% April, 2014 as well as National Safety Day on 4% March, 2015, It has been ensured that

the implementing agencies observe all national days related to workmen, safety and environment,

EIA studies of both the corridors, EDFC & WDFC, have revealed negligible irripact on the habitat of water
bodies, wildlife, flora & fauna, ambient air quality, soil and not significant noise & vibration pollution due to
DFC. Suitable mitigation measures and Environment Management Plan have been recommended in the
reports. Cutting of trees to clear Right of Way (RoW), compensatory tree plantation and silicosis exposure

reduction strategy have been adequately addressed in the EIA reports.

- At implementation level, DFCCIL has already committed itself to take all necessary steps fo mitigate the
unavoidable imparts due to the construction and operation of the freight corridor. All such steps and the
measures required to improve the quality of flora and fauna, wildlife and water-bodies; efc has been made

integral parts of its procurement plans.

Human Resource Deveioﬁ%ﬁent and Industrial relations

Mission and Values

The HR department serves the interests of the organization by supporting, developing, and protecting its
most valuable resource - People. It is committed fo providing quality services in an environment of
continuous change; to achieving business results through development of world class HR core
competencies by promoling innovation through continuous learning and employee enﬁﬁowement; and by
building & collaborative organization characterized by chaiienging and supportive work environment that



offers opportunities for both employee and organizational growth and at the same time being guided by
ethical and professional standards.

* Manpower Mobilization

Initiaily the experiencéd personnel from Indian Railways were inducted on deputation as a part of manpower
induction strategy. Taking into consideration the long term requirements of the organization, manpower has
been inducted from open market through direct recruitment and immediate absorption besides permanent
absorption of eligible deputationists. During the year, 85 candidates joined DFCCIL through open market
recruitment. In addition to above, 21 posts were filled from amongst serving Govemment!PSU‘employees
through immediate absorption. All the 106 candidates have been provided the prescribed initial/induction
training. Selection for filling up of 178 posts during construction phase from open market direct recruitment
and 127 posls of Durgaw;c:ﬁ -Karwandiya Section was completed during the year.

With respect to the needs of DFCCIL, Department of Public Enterprise has periodically granted exemption
to DFCCIL for immediate absorption rule. The present exemption is valid till 29.12.2015 with permission to
induct 200 gazetted ofiicers and 200 non - gazette employees on deputation terms. The normal deputation
tenure in DFCCIL for Railway employees is 5 years, as approved by Railway Board in 2012. During the
year, 55 employees have joined on deputation basis and deputation extension of 51 officers have been
Es'sued by HR. | |

With new Induction, total strength increases o 635 officers, out of which 392 are permanent.

Promotion

Promotion policy in DFCCIL a.irns to take care of career advancement consistent with merit, suitabiiity and
performance while proQiding for adequate promotional avenues and to provide outstanding human
resources support and service with appropriate skills and aptitudes so as to have effective leadership,
professional expertise and quality consultation. The promotion policy is transparent and focuses on
advancing employees based on their skill and performance. Normally residency period b'fﬁl years is required
in one grade for promotion from executive to ED level. 'thringrthe year, 07 employees, who became eligible
have been promoted to next higher grade as per the ab_ox)e prdmotion policy.

Policy Initiatives ; '

Number of HR policy initiatives have been taken such as introduction of Pension, Gratuity, Staff Welfare,
Perks & Allowances, CTG and Advances efc., besides updation/ modification in existing human resource
policies.

Weifare Schemes _

The DFCCIL Welfare Fund Rules have been approved by the Board of Directors in their 48" meeting held on
12.02.2015. The basic intent is to provide facilities to employees to keep their motivation levels high and



provide better life and health to them. Major welfare activities proposed are- Annual picnic, Sports and cultural

activities, Scholarships to employees’ children, Annual health checkups, Marriage gifts etc.

TRAINING:
Technical tra'inings have been planned for professional up gradation of staff and officers of DFCCIL,
Training of DFCCIL is broadly divided into 4 groups:

{i}. Induction Training for direct recruits

{ii}. Induction Training for absorbees

(iii). World Bank Approved Trainings

{iv). Other Professional Trainings

Induction Training fc-ar Direct Recruits:
. For fresh recruits Induction and specialized technical trainings were organized at various Railway
Training Institutes like: IRISET, IRICEN, ZETC/Vadodara, ZRTI/Udaipur, IRIEEN
Induction Training for officers taken on immediate absorption basis:
. For officers taken on immediate absorption basis, Induction and specialized technical trainings were
organized at ZRTI/Muzaffarpur, NIFM, Faridabad
| World Bank approved Training:
= Based on the Training need analysis done by HR involving Chief Project Maﬁa‘gers (Field Officers}
and GGM/GMs of Corporate Office, a detailed Training Plan was prepared which Was also approved
by World Bank. The target kept in World Bank Plan was for 321 officers and 869 mandays. The
target has already been achzeved

Other Professional Training:
» . Special trainings for Updation of knowledge and infusion of latest knowhow has been specially

orgnaised for DFCCIL employees in resputed institute. A few of these areas under:

Few Highlights-of the Training Plan: :
a) Orgaﬁizationai & Team Leadership ~ Indian School of Business (ISB)

. Training course at 3B Mohali helped officers in understanding contemporary context of leadership,
levels of leadership, managing subordinate relaionships etc. The 2 day fraining programme
covered case studies and group discussions for practical learning experience for 31 senior level

participants.



d)

e)

Brand Communication & Perception Management — Indian School of Business (ISB)
One day Training on Communication & Perception Management was organized for middle and
senior level officers for a group of 37 persons. The programme covered key concepls in branding,

issues and challenges in the world of communication, PR and Perception Management.

Training in FIDIC Conditions:

International FIDIC Trainer Mr. Bogdan Oprea from Romania was engaged for giving training on

Practical use of FIDIC Contracts as per the requirement of DFCCIL. 45 officials participated in two

day training programme. |

This practical raining explained and illustrated the use of the FIDIC Conditions of Contract for

Construction {the “Construction Contract”) and the FIDIC Conditions of Contract for Plant and
Design-Build (the “Design Build Contract’).

Training in Land Acquisition and Reseftlement & Rehabilitation Program:”
Program on land acquisition and resettlement and rehabilitation was organized through ASCI,
Hyderabad.

Training Programme on RTI

One day workshop on RTI Act was held at ISTM for 25 officials. The training helped participants to
understand purpose and concept of Right to Information, salient features of the act, procedure of appeals

and penalties imposable by Information Commission, étrategy for operationalizing Right:to Information.

f)

Training on Financial Literacy

A Training on Financial Literacy was organized for 45 DFCCIL officials through CHl at Allahabad for four

days. The programme covered topics such as concepts of financial literacy, practical application of financial

literacy concepts, introduction to financial conéepts elc.

in addition, [-).F:CCiL official participated in fraining/ seminar held in Korea, Philippines and also various

locations in the Country.



Corporate Social Responsibility

Vision-
To meet social obfigations by playing active role

to improve quaity of life of communities and
stakeholders.

Mission- .-

To remain a resposible coprorate entity to all
stakeholders and society at large.

Consequent upon ihireducﬁon of the Companies Act, 2013, a Sub-Committee of the Board to be known as
Corporate Social Responsibiiity‘ Committee was constituted during the year under review. As on date of
Report, the Sub-Committee of the Board comprises Sh. Girish Pillai, Nominee Director, as Chairman,
Sh. H.D. Gujrati, DirfOP&BD, Convenor and Sh. D.S. Rana, Dir/Infra, asits members. During the year under
review, the Company developed and implemented a Corporate Social Responsiﬁility policy duly approved
by the Board. It was further decided that an amount of Rs.58 Lakhs may be incurred on varioﬁs CSR
activities to be undertaken during 2014-15. An amount of Rs. 53.86 lakhs has been spent on the CSR
activities during 2014-2015 by all the filed units.
As per MoU 2014-15 signed between the Company and Ministry of Railways read with revised DFCCIL's
'Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability Policy 2014, it was decided to undertake following CSR
activities during the year 2014-15-

 Swachh Vidyalaya Campaign (Provision of toilets in schools)/ Eco-Sanitation at Construction Sites.

. Skilii Development Training to Pro}éct Affected Persons (PAPs) with a view to generate employment

among them. |

« Providing Computer Literacy with accessories in school.

The details of above CSR activities are as under:
i, Tollet Blocks were provided at 12 places/schools by Ajmer, Allahabad (W), Ambala, Mumbai and

Tund!la field units under Swacch Vidayalya Campaign/ Eco-Sanitation at Construction.
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ii. Total 475 PAPs were provided Skill Development Training of 26535 mandays in different job oriented
trades by DFCCIL field units, namely, Allahabad {W), Ahmadabad, Meenut anc Mumbai. The key areas in
which the frainees were given trainings are as under.

e Cutting & Tailoring and Dress Making'

¢ Pre-training for employment in Pofice/Military/Para-Military as Soldier

e Making Gents Leather Purse and Solar Laniemn

s  Electrician Trade Training

e Typing Training

»  Computer Training
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iii. In the field of providing Computer literacy, a total 10 desktop computers with all accessories like UPSs,
Speakers, Printers & computer tables were provided in 7 schools located in areas of PAPs by Vadodara

and Noida fieid units respectively.
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- ‘ _ Fo::m No. MR-3
SE CRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT |
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2014 ~ 15
[Purmaﬂ to section 204(1) pf r tbe Comparies Act, 2013 and rule
No.9 of the C ampame.r (A | ppointment and Remunceration meannuﬂ
- ' Rxfr.r 2014} K '

. To,
The Mcmbc.rs of
Dedicated Freight Cotridor Ccrpormos of India Limited
50Floot, Pragati Maidan Metro Staden ,
Building Complex , Delhi-110001 g
c:_m:u'sozszmzooaGozzssosa '

Wc hav: conducted thc Sccrc:mal Audzt of the compliance of apphcabl: statutory pmv:s:ons and the
adherence to good corporate pracdces by Dedicated, Freight Corridor Corpozatfon of India, Limited, .

- {hereinafter called *the Company”). Sec:ctansl Aud.:t was conductcd in 2 manner that’ pmvsdcd usa
reasonable basis for cva]uar.sng the co:porztc conducts,/st:mtmy comphmccs and eipressing our op:mon g

- thcrcon

7 Based on our verification of the Companys books papers, minute books, e-Forsms and feturns fled and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information p:ovxdcd by the Company, its officers, ‘_

" agents and authorized representatives during thel donduct of secretaial audit, We hereby rcpcr: that in otr |

- opinion, the company has, during the audit pedod covering the financial year commencing from 14 Apdl,
2014 and ended on 31 March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 2nd-also that the
Compmy has proper | Board- -processes and compliznce-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and

.sub;cct to Lhc reporting made hcrcmnftcr . i

Wc .‘mwc examined the books, papers, minute books, e-forms and rerurns filed and other rccords munmncd

by Dcdxemcd Freight -Cosridor Corporation of India Limited ("th: Companf’) for the ﬁnancnl year .. ¢
cndcd on3n Much 2015 acco:dmg to the provxsxons of. : :

1) Thc Companies Act, 2013 (thc Act) and the m]l%s made there undcz;

2) 'Thc Sccunucs Conarac:s (Reguiatzon) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there undcr,

3) , The Depositodes Act, 1996 and the chulnnons aAnd Byc-laws framed there undes; '

- 4). ;Forczgn Exchange Managemient Act, 1999 -,md the rules and :cgu]auons made there under zo- the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Duecé Invesunent and External Cornmcrcml Bor:owxn s




Balika Sharma & Associates : Address:Flat No. 211, Pocket-A / 3,
(Company Secretary) 4 o Sector-7, Rohini, New Delhi,
- ~ Pin Code -110085

' " Phone :011-27931217

Mobile: 9811387946

E mail:balikashirma@gmail.com

" 3) The following chulalid,ns and Guidelines prescibed under the Securities and _Exch‘adgc Board of India
' Act, 1992 (‘SEBLAct’):- . : " ‘ ‘ '
%) The Secusrities and Exchange Board of India (Substanual Acquisition” 6f Shares and Takeovers)’
- Reguladens, 2011; - . ' { o -
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (P:ohii?ition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
¢)* The Sc_cﬁﬁdcs and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
" Reguladons, 2009 S R ‘ S .
L) " The Securities and Exchasge. Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee. Stock
 Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; ’ '
¢y The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securites) Regulations, 2008; ‘
fy The Securitics and Exchange Boxd of India (Registrars © an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
' Reguladops, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; '
. g) . The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and.-
. ) “The Securites and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; S

8). 'B:ing an Unlisted Public Cén;pany, the above r'ncn;ior}cd acts given in Para 2,3, and 5 are not ,ippﬁcaslc
- to the Company. ‘ : : ,

Ty We have relicd on the representation made by.:.h: Company and its Officess for systems znd mechanism '

fotmed by the Company for. compliances under other, applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the

..~ Company. The list of major head/groups of Acts, Laws and Reguladons as applicable to the Compsny is
. given in Annexure L. ‘ . oo . o . o

. "VhVe..h:wc'no: cxm_aiﬁéd compliances p'f the followings, as provisions of para (i) were not in placc_' il Si" .

© " March, 2015 and provisions of para (i) arc not applicable to the Company (being unlisted public company). -

1y . Secretasial Standards issued by Th'c Institute of Company Secretaries of India. . .
i) The Lisung Agreements entered into by the Company with N.A. Stock Exchange(s), if applicable;

We further repoct that

Fhe Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors

and Non-Executive Dizectors, as thege are no Indepeadent Directors snd a Wornan Dircetor. During ‘the.

year, term of Inﬁcécndcn; Dircctors ended as per the tezms of the appointment issued by Administradve
" Ministry: Le. Ministry of Railways. The Co'mpm‘y has already requested the Ministry to appoint ‘requisite
" mimber of Indepéndent Directors & Woman Director on the Board of Company and the confirmaton on.
" ame is awaited from the Ministry of Railways. '
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‘ o :
- Adequate notice is given to all dizectors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and 2 system exists for sécking and obuzining further information
and clarifications on the agenda iterns before ;:hc meeting and for mcamngful pamczpanon at the meeting:

Wc furthcr teport that there are adequate systems and processes in the" company commcnsumtc with the
- size and operations of the Company to momto: and ensure compliance with npphcabic laws, .mlc.s :ngulauom
nnd guidelines as statcd above,

H

We ful:thcr report that during the audit period the company has:

1, “Aliortcd 1, 00 79,288 (Onc Crore chcnty Nine Thousand Two Hundred Eighty Eight) Equity Sharcs of ’
Rs. 1000 each on 13.06.2014. o

2. "Shlif&cd'its registered dfﬁcc from “Room No. 101A, Rail Bhawan, Raisina Road, New Delhi-110001” to |
“Sth Floor Pragati Maidan Metco Station, Building Complex, New Dethi-110001" w.e.£ 29.08.2014,

3. In theabsence of ;xppointmcnt of Independent Directors on the Board of the Company by the Govt.of - .
" India, the Audit Committee, Nomi iauon & Remuneraton Committee and Corporate Social ~ -

‘ Rcsponsxbﬂﬂy Comrmittee has not been Lonstituted propesly as per the réquirements of Section 177(2) &
‘(3) Sccuon 178(1) and Sccaon 135 (1) & (3) of the Compamcs Act, 2013, .

. Place; New Delhi _ _ ‘ ) - Signature:

Datg: 28.07.2015 ‘ Balika Sharma & Associates .
L . : Company Sceretaries
FCS No: 4816

C P No: 3222

" This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as Anaexure Il and forms an integral
. B S . s . | B t v
partof this report, !

H
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Empioyccs Pxowdcnt Funds and (Miscellancous Provisions) Act, 1952 '
Building and Other Construction wo:kirs (R.egulmon of Emp!oymcn: and Condmon of Scmcc )

Act, 1996

Building and Other Construcnon workers Wc!faxc Cess Act, 1996

* Contract Labour (chulat:on and Abohnon) ,Act, 1970

Employees State Insucance Act, 1948
Equal Remuneration Act, 1976
Industrial Employment( Standing Orders) Act, 1946

_Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 |

Minimurmn Wages Act, 1948

. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

.. Payment of Wages Act, 1936

."Workmen Compensation Act, 1923 ' : :

. Inter-State Migrant Workmen (chulauon of ‘E.mploymcm and Condmon of Scmcc) Act, 1979 -
. Child Labour (Prohibition and chulamn) Act, 1986 '

. Incomc Tax Act, 1961 .

. Foreign Exchangc & Management Act, 1999
. Service Tax Rules,1994

. The Central Sales Ta*c Act, 1956

. Railway Act, 1989

. Relevant Provisions -& NRRP -2007

. Rightto Information Act, 2005 )

. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and Rules & Amcndmcnts
- Wildli fe(Protection) Act, 1 972 and Rules

. Foresy( Conscrvanon) Act, 1980 and Rules

. Coastal Regulation Zone N/N, 201]

. The Wedands (Conservation and Madagcmcm) Rules , 2010

. Tree Presecrvation Act/ Relevant Act of the Particular State -

. Air ( Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

.. Water ( Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 -

. “The Noise Pollution (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000 ‘

. Ancient Monuments and Archncoiogcal Sites and Remains Act 2010 and National Monumcnts
* Authority Rules, 2011

. Delhi Shops 8 & Estabhshmcnt Act, 1954,

b
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’ ANNEXURE 11
H
To,

The Members of,
. Dedicated Freight Corddor Corporation of India Limited .
. 5*Floor, Pragati Maidan Metro Staton .

Building Complex, Delhi-110001

CIN: U60232DL2006GO1155068

9 Qur report of even daté is to be read along with this lexter:

1

. responsibility is to express an opinib}'x on these secretarial records based 6n our audit,

‘Management of §pcrcti:iai record is the responsibility of the mﬁnzgcmc;;t of the Company, Qur

We have followed the audit praccich and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretaral Records, The verification was done
on test basis to ensuce that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records, We believe that the-

- processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. -

. We have not verified r.hg;. corfcct%xcsrk and apprdpxiatcncés of fnancial records and Books of

Accounts of the Cornpany.

!
1

‘Wherever required, we have obtained the Management represestation about the compliance of laws, -

rules and regulations & happening of events ctc,

The complianée of the provisiony of Corporate and other applicable laws, niles, regulations, -
-standards.is the responsibiliy of mhndgement. Our examination was limited to the verification of

procedure on test basis, Pl

The Secretarial Audic Reportis ncither an assurance as to the future viability of the Compén'y not the
 efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: New Delhi S A
Date: 28.07.2015 o ' Balika Sharma 8 AR
. o Company Secretaries

¥




Form No, MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on _31.03,2015

W “u

[Pursuant to section 92(3j of the Companies Act, 2013 and :rule 12(1)
* - of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

060732 DL 2006 GO1155088

details of Registrar and

i} CIN

it) Registration Date 130,10.2006

i) Name of the Company Dedicated Freight Corridor CorpOfation of India Lid.

"iv) Category / Sub-Category of the l |
Company '

v} | Address of the Registered L Fioor Pragati Maidan Me%re Station Building Ccmplex
office and contact details New Delhi

vi) Whether listed company Yes /No >~

vii) Name, Address and Contact | N.A. ‘

Transfer Agent, if any

. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACT%VITIES OF THE COMPANY

Alf the business activities contr:bu ting 10 % or more of the lotal turnover of the company shall be

stated.-
sl Name and Description NIC Code ofthe * | % to Total turnover of
NO. of main products/ services Product/ services . the company
1 N.A.
2
3

b
g



lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSQOCIATE COMPANIES -

S.NO

NAME AND
ADDRESS OF THE
COMPANY

CIN/GIN

ASSOCIATE

HOLDING/SUBSIDIAY/

% of shares

held

Section

Applicable

2

N.A.

IV, SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity ,Shafe Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Eqﬁity)

6] Category-wise Share Holding

share-
hoiderg

Category of

No. of shares held at the
beginning of the year

|
No. of shares held atthe end of
:  the year '

% Change
during
the
year

Demat [Physical  {Total

% of
Total
Shares

DematPhysical

ot

% of
Total
Share

(1) indian

A. Promoters

HUF

(g Individual/

{h) Central
Govt

- [27,077,400

27,077,400

100% | - 7,156,668

37,156,688

00% | -

37.23%

(State
Govi(s}

- - L -

{}) Bodies
Corp.

-

(k) Banks/Fl

(1) Any Other... - - —

P,

Sub-total
(A (1)

. 127.077.400 [27,077,400

100% |- B7.156,688

37,156,688

100%

37.23%

(2) Foreign

{a) NRis -
Individuals

(b) Other -
individuals




{c) Bodies
Corp.

(d) Banks / FI

{e) Any

Sub-total (A)
(2)-

Total
shareholdi
ng of
Promoter
(A} =
(A)1)+(A)
(2)

27,077,400

27,077,400

100%

37,156,688 37,156,688 [100% [37.23%

8. Public K
"Shareholding |

{(a) Mutual -
Funds

(b) Banks/Fl

{c)Central
Govt

{d) State
Govy(s)

(e) Venture
Capital
Funds

| {f}insurance
Companies

(g} Fils

(h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

{ij Cthers
{specify)

Sub-total
(BY(1)-

2. Non
institutions
a) Bodies
Corp.

NA,




i) Indian

ity Cverseas

b} Individuals

i} individual
sharehold
ers holding
nominal
share
capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

N.A.

i) Individual
sharehold
ers holding
nominal
share
capitalin
excess of
Rs 1 lakh

c) Others
{specify)

AR WU NP

.
Tty

Sub-total
{B)2):-

. Total Public | N.A.
Shareholding :

(B)=(B)1)+
&2

C. Shares

held by -

1 Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand total TTh7077.400 27,077,400 N00% | - [37,156,688(37,156,688 [100% |- 37.23%
{A+B+C) ‘ -

LA Y W

L

.,




(i} Shareholding of Promoters

?

SL. | Shareholder's | Shareholding at the beginning of | Share holding at the end of
NO. Name ' the year the year
) o No. of % of total % of No.of | %of %of - %
" Shares | Sharesof | shares | Shares | total Shares | change
¥ | the pledged Shares |Pledged/| inshare
> | company | /encunb ofthe |encunbe | holding
' erred to compa " | rred to during
total ny total the
shares o shares year
1 [The President of 127,077,400/100% - 37,156,688100% - P1.23%
India S ‘ : : '
g Total 27.077,4001100% - 37,156,6881100% - 137.23%

(i} Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

St Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative shareholding
NO. the year - during the year
No. of shares %oftotal | No.of shares % of total
: shares of the | shares of the
company - company
Atthe 2,70,77,400 100% 2,70,77,400 100%
beginning of ‘ ‘
the year

Date wise 14.06.2014
Increase /'
Decrease in
Promoters
w Share holding
) | during the
year
specifying the
reasons for
increase /
| decrease
g .
allotment /

transfar ./ )
Atthe Endof [3,71,56,688 1GQ% 3,71,56,688 100%

the Year Li

1,00,79,288 - 11,00,79,288




-

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other th?n Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):

SL. “Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative shareholding
No. the year _during the year
For Eachofthe Top. | No.of shares % of total No. of % of total .
10 Shareholders shares of the shares shares of the
company company

| Atthe Seginning of

the year

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for Increase
/ decrease {e.g.
allotment /transfer /
bonus / Sweat equity
ete). '

N.A.

At the End of the

year {or on the date
of separation, if
separated during the

year)

{v) Shareholding of D'ireétors and Key Managerial Personnel: None of the Direclor or KMP hold share in Comp.anv ‘

Sk Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during the
Na. __ofthe year year _
For Each of No. of shares % of total No.of shares % of total shares of
the Directors shares of the the company
and KMP - company
At the
beginning of
the year




et

4

Dale wise
Increase/
Cecrease in

during the
year ..
specifying the
reasons for
increase /
-decrease
(e.q.
allotment /
transfer /

Share holding |

At the End of
the year

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including iateré,st outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured loans
excluding
deposits .

Uﬁ§:ecured loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at
the beginning of
the financial year
(i) Principal
Amount

98,662,12,120

199,662,12,120

(i) Interest due
but not paid

{ili) Interest
accrued but
not due ‘

28,66,70,785

28,65,70,785

L Total (i+ii+iii)

1025,27,82,905

" [1025,27,82,005

Change in
Indebtednes
5 during the
financial year

« Addition {Int +
Loan)

502,81,84,437

1602,81,84,437

= Reduction




Net Change 502,81,84,437 i 502,81,84,437
Indebtedness | |
at the end of
the financial
year
(iiPrincipal 1441,08,48,582 1441,08,48,582
Amount
ii) Interest due but -
nof paid ' L , :
(iéi)ln'terest 87,01,18,760 . 87,01,18,760
accrued but -
not due @
Total (1 + i+ i) 1528,09,67,342 1528.09,6?,342
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andfor Manager: '
St. | Particular Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
No.| s of Amount
- | Remuner
ation : , - , .
Name Adesh CC096, (C0244,H.0..C0330,  [C0091, D.S. Rana
- [Sharma R.K.Gupt Gujrat], M.K.Mittal Anshuman- :
: a,010222 |DL42182- ISharma, DL~
34 135 42192-007 : @
Designation.0. MOD. WI.D(OPR WID. [W.T.D.(PP) W.TD.
_ & 80) (Finance) (INFRA)
Gross 1,426,8?6.0031.000.002,801,476.00 2503289.502,740,919.00 12,095,301.00111,598,861.¢
salary 0
{a) Salary
as per
provision
5 .
contained
in section
17(1) of y

T,

.._...___,,,.,_[

vy
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DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
CIN - U60232DL2006GO3155068

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2015 Amount in {T Lakh)
. . , Asat March 31,  Asat March 31,
Particulars Note Ng 2015 2014
L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Shareholders’ Funds
{2) Share Capital 3 371,566.88 270,774 00
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 11,042.88 727235
(2) Share application money pending alotment S 108.700.00 100,792 .83
{3} Non-Current Liabilities -
{2} Long-Term Borrowings 6 144,108.49 99,662.12
(b) Other Long Term Liabikities 7 22,388.80 9,296.30
(¢} Long Term Provisions 8 357.60 . 32578
{4) Current Liabilities- - - ) T .
(a} Other Current Liabilities o .9 ’ 41,258.49 18,209.40
{b) Short Term Provisions e 10 .. 36.69 89.68
TOTAL _ ' 700,159.83 506,422.51
1I. ASSETS
{1} Non-Cerrent Assets
{a) Fixed assets ‘ i3] ‘
{i) Tangible assets ' 1,182.58 897.57
(i} Intangible assets ' . 4137 - 40.74
(iii) Capital work in progress 32724215 156,131.90
(iv) Tangible Assets under development 18.99 249.55
{v) Intangible Asscts under development ' 911.88 513.85
(b} Long-term loans and advances 12 284,213.70 259,622.67
{2) Current Assets . '
(3} Cash and Bank Balances . 13 - £3,484.75 84,062.11
{b) Short-term loans and advances ’ . 14 400.85 : 407.68
() Other current assets 15 2,663.56 4,496.44
TOTAL ' ‘ 760,159.83 506,422.5]
General Information ) H .
Significant Accounting Policies 2
Development Account {Pending Capitalisation) 19

Note 1 1o 34 form integral part of the Financial Statements,

Thisis the Balance Sheet referred to in our réport of even date.

For and o:i: behalf of the Board of Directors
For M/s Baweja & Kaul :

Chartered Accountants . : '9/ '
- Firm Registration No{05834)5 . : e
T : (Adesh Sharma) K.Mittal) )
1 - 2 - .

Managing Director ) Director Finance
CA Dalip K Kaul DIN 27022393 DIN -2889021
Partner

"M.No. 083066 )
{Mienu Kapoor)
: . . Company Secretary
Place : New Dethi - , : o ACS -18954

Date: ?_d,b\gg\—)o‘g‘

ECaN
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! DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

CIN - U60232DL2006G 01155068
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2015

Amount in 3 Lakh)

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
) : No, March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
REVENUE
L Revenue from pperations - -
I1. Other Income 119 5,699.20 . 5,686.58
11). Total Revenue (1+13) . 5,699.20 5,686.58
EXPENSES
Employee Benefit expense ‘ 17 - .
Finance cost 174 - -
Depreciation and amortization expense 178 - -
Other expenses 17C -

IV. Total Expenses ' ’

V. Profit before exceptiona! and extraordinary items and tax (HI-1V)

5,699.20 5,686.58
V1. Exceptional Ttems - - .
VYL, Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V-¥h 5,699.20 5,686.58
YHL Extraordinary ltems ) - . v
X. Profit before tax {VII - V1) 5,699.20 5,686.58
X. Tax expense: '
(1) Current tax 1,914.25 1,930.88
{2} Income Tax {Earlicr Year) (3150 -
{3) Deferred 1ax - -
XL Profit{Loss) for the year from continning operations {(1X-X) 3.816.45 _ - 3,755.70
(A) Transferred to Development Account 45.92 58.63
XI11. Profit from discontinuing eperations - .
XH1. Tax Expenses of discontinuing operations - -
XIV. Profit/(Loss) for the period from discontinuing operations (X1
XHD) ) )
XY. Profit/{Loss) for the period (X3+ X1V . {AR 3,770.53 3,697.07
XVI. Earnings Per Share (Face Value 7 1000 each)}
Basic 10.73 13.95
Diluted 10.14 13.93

General Information
Significant Accounting Policies
Development Account (Pending Capitatisation) 19
Note 1 to 34 form integral pant of the Financial Statements.

™S b

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our repord of even date, -

- For and on Behalfofthe Board of Directors
For M/s Baweja & Kaul
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration NofOS834N (";.KL '
S _ (Adesh Sharma) (MK Mitial)

Managing Director " Director Finance
CA Dalip K Kaul DIN -7022393 DIN 2889021
Partner -
M.No. 083066 —
(Metnu Kapoor)

Place : New Delhi Company Secretary
Date: 250146 l 20157 - : ACS-18954
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CASH FLOWSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2015

CIN . U602320 L2006 G O 55004 _g‘gH

Amount in {3 Lakh)

. Year ended Year ended
SN PARTICULARS March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
-1 Cash Flow from Operating Aciivities
Net profit before 1ax 5.699.20 5,692.49
interest income on Bank Deposits (5,635.78) {5,600.78)
Adjustment for charge 10 Development Account (4590 (64.54)
Adjusiment for changes in Working Capital:
{ncrease)Decrease in other receivables 332269 508228
Increase (Decrease) in corrent lizbilities 3645104 13,538.80
{Decrease) Increase in Provision - .
Cash Generated from/A{used in)} Operalions 39,791.20 21,648.25
income Taxes Paid/Received {1,880.91) }865.11)
Net Cash gencrated from fused in} Operating 37,930.2% 19,783.14

Activities {A)

2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities =~
Purchase of Fixed assets Including Capiral
work in progress (CWIP)
Sule of Fixed Assets )
Interest income from Bank Deposils
{IncreaseyDecrease in Capital Advances
Net Cash generated from / {ased in) Investing
activities {B)

3 Cash flow from Financing Activities :-

Preceeds from issuance of Share capital

Proceeds from Share Application Money
Proceeds from long -term borrowings

Interest & Borrowing Cosis

Net Cash generated from / {used in) Fina neing
activities {C)

NetIncrease/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents {A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the

year

Cash aad Cash Equivatenis at the closing of the
year

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise:
Cash and Bank Balances
Chegues in hand

Motes :

1. The Cash and Cash Equivalents includes T 3,382.70 Lakh
behalf of MOR and rot frecly available for the business of the

B

(169,800.13) {52.288.61)
10.93 “S118
597829 5,040.80
£24,591.03) (128,588.24)
(188,491.94) {(175,784.87)
108,700.00 100,792.88
42,762.20 89,207.312
{1,544.53) {75.13)
: 149,51737 189,921.82
{664.28) 33,920.09
£3,732.70 49,812.62
83,06842 83,732.71
83,046.46 83,728.61
21,9 490
83,068.42 83,732.71

{Previous Year € 4,175.75 Lakh) in CorentDeposit Account with bank, held on
company.

2. The Cash Ouflow from avesting activities includes T 15.06 Lakh {Previous Year T 17.53 Lakhs) incurred for CSR activities.

For M/s Baweja & Kaul
Chartered Accounfants ]
Firm Registration No{05834N

T e
CA Dalip K Kant

Partner
M.No. 083066

Place = New Dethi

Date: %n\ oh I 20} -S’-'

For and on beball of the Board of Directors

{Adcs‘-égm/a)

Managing Director

DIN 7022393

Director Finance
DIN -288%021

o~

{Mceau Kapoor
Company Secretary
ACS -18954



DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements

1.

2.1

22

23

24

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited (DFCCIL) is set up under the

administrative control of Ministry of Railway for construction, maintenance and operation of
the Dedicated Freight Corridors.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial statements of the Company are prepared under the historical cost convention using
the accrual method of accounting in accordance with the generally accepted accounting

principles (Indian GAAP) and complying with the mandatory Accounting Standards {AS) as
notified under Companies Act, 2013.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with Indian GAAP, require
management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Any variation in the estimates and actual are

adjusted prospectively .in the accounting period of change and future accounting periods
respectively.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in_Accounting Standard

"3" on “Cash Flow Statements” and presents the cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the company. :

FIXED ASSETS & CA PITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition/construction. In cases where final settlement of
bills with contractors is pending, but the asset is complete and ready for use, capitalisation is
done on estimated basis subject to necessary adjustment, including those arising out of
settlenent of arbitration/court cases, in the year(s) of final settiement.

Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost. Expenditure during construction net of incidental
income is capitalized as part of relevant assets. ' "

Capital Stores are valued on Weighted Average Cost.

DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION

Depreciation on additions to /deductions from fixed assets duripg the year is charged on pro-
rata basis from / up to the date on which the asset is available for use / disposal.

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on straight-line method using the useful life
specified in Schedule It of the Companies Act, 2013,

4~
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d)

e)

4

2.6

2.7

. b)

€)
2.8

Asset valuing ¥ 5000/- or less are {ully depreciated in the vear of addition thereof.

Cost of software is recognized as Intangible Assets and is amortized on straight line method
over a period of legal right to use or three years, whichever is earlier. Other intangible assets
are amortized on straight line method over the-period of fegal right to use. .

Fixed Assets created on leaschold land and Leaschold Premises improvemeﬁls are depreciated
fully over the residual period of lease of respective land / leasehold premises or over the life of
respective asset as specified in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, whichever is shorer.

Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a chanpge during the year due to
increase/decrease in Jong term liabilities on account of exchange Tluctuation, price adjustment,
change in duties or similar factors, the unamortized balance of such assets is depreciated
prospectively over the residual life of such assets. .

Where the life and / or efficiency of an asset is increased due to renovation and modernization,
the expenditure thereon along—wilh its unamortized depreciable ashount is charged
prospectively over the revised / remaining useful life deiermmed by lechmca] assessiment.

REVENUE

Revenue is recognized based on the. nature of acltvuy when consideration can be reasonably
measured and there exists reasonable ccnamxy of its recovery.

Interest on Bank Deposits is booked on a time pmponion basis.
Other items of income are accounted for as and when the right to receive is established.
Service charges income is recognized as per the terms of the contracts

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in Toreign cumrency are initially recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transaction. At each Balance Sheet date monetary items denominated in foreign currency
are translated ‘at the cxchange rale prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.

Exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings to the extent regarded as adjustment 1o
interest costs in terms of Para 4(e} of AS-16 on Borrowing Costs is accounted for as

borrowing costs in terms of ibid AS and balance is adjusted to the carrying cost of respective
fixed asset/Capital Work-in-Progress, to which such borrowing pertains.

Exchange difference on other monetary items is recognized as income & expenses.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

All émpioyee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short tenn employee benefits. Benefits such as short- term compensated absences,
etc. are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Provision for Post employmcm-bcnef t as defined in AS-15 (2005) on Employee Benefits is
made based on actuarial valuauon at the year-end.

Provision for Long term employee benefits such as Long-term compensated absences, is made
in the books on the bas:s of actuarial valuation made at the year end,

g
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d)

2.5

2.10

2.12

Provision/liabilities towards Foreign Service Coniribution are made in terms of Government
Rules & Regulation for employees on deputation and charged 1o development Account,

Expenses on Ex-gratia payments & Notice Pay under Voluntary Relirement Scheme are
charged to revenue in the year of incurrence.

BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs attributable 1o the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses
in the period in which these are incurred. Cost of raising borrowings / upfront fees and other
similar expenses are capitalized/charged as expense in the year of incurrence jtself.

TAXES ON INCOME

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and 1axable
income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively
enacted ason the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are reccgnized and carried forward

to the extent there is a virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which-such deferred tax assets can be realized. '

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Provisions are recognized in respect of obligations where, based on the evidence available,
outflow of resources is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Contingent Liabilities are detérmined on the basis of available information. These
habilities are not provided and the same are disclosed in the notes to accounts. Contingent
Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements,

MISCELLANEOUS

Liabilities for Goods in transit/Capital works executed but not centified are not

provided for,
pending inspection and acceptance by the Corporation. ‘

Claims including price variation are accounted for on acceptance.

Liguidated Damages are reéognizcd at the time of actual recovery.

Prepaid expenses and prior period expensesfincome of items of ¥ 50,000/~ and below are
charged to natural heads of accounts. :

Mobile instruments are charged off to revenue,

Insurance claims are accounted for based-on Management best assessment of the quantum of
loss & coverage thereof in terms of Insurance Policy. Any shortfill / excess are adjusted on
the settlement of claims. Claim towards losses of CWIP, for which Insurance are obtained by

Contractors under the provisions of respective contract agreement, are not accounted in the
books of Company. ‘

A
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3 Share Capiial . Amauntin (T Lakp)
Particulars As 21 March .S As ol March M, 2014
Autherized Share Capilat .
8.00,60.000 {Previcus Year 8.00.00.000) - £00.000.00 800,000 0
Equity Shares of T 1000/ each
———
N B0, 604,00 800,600.00
ssued, Subscribed & Paid vp Capinai
3,78.55.088 {Previous Year 2.70.77,400} J7E,566.88 0,774 60
Equity Shares of T 1060/ cach
—————— e
I71,566.38 2H,174.00
3t Retendbiation of the Number of Equity Shares )
Particolary As a3t March 31, 2008 As a2t March 1T, 1014
Nomber of shares ArRount in {¥ Lauk) Number of shores AMOUnt in {T Laki)
Balance 35 21 the beginning of the year 11077400 270.774,00 19,650,500 196,505.00
Add Equity Shares issucd during the Yead! Peripg 10,079,288 10,792 338 7.426,900 74.26%9.00
Balance 35 31 the end of the year 37,156,688 I 566,88 17,077,400 270.774,00

33

4.1

Details of Shares held by sharcholders holding more than % of 1he 2Bgregate shares b the Company

Particulars - As at March 31, 2015 | AsarMarch3n2014

- : Number of shares o of Holling Number of shaves % ol Holding

Equity Shares - . .
The Prevident of India & his nominees (Ministry of Railways} JT.156.638 00, 00% 27.077.400 1 00.00%

Rigbl.s, Preferences & Restrictions attached 1o Equity Shares .
The Company has only one class of equity shares tefemed 1o as equity shares having pas vaiue of ¥ 1000/, Each holder of one equity share is entitled 10 one vole per share,
In the eveny of liquidation of the ¢ pany, the holders ofshaiq shall be entitled 10 remaining assess of the company, afice distribution of al} preferengial smounts,

Reserves And Surplus ‘ Amonnt in {T Lakh}
Particolers ! As at March 31, 2018 As 2t March 31, J014
Surplus;
Opening Balance 727238 -

. Add: Tnsher from Development Account - 357528
Add : Profit afies Tax (Corrent Year} 377053 3,697.67
’ . 1042 88 121238
Less : Approoriations ) - “
Closing Balance - . 13,041,858 ) 717135

M;)nqr o account of equity i5 kept in bank deposits, pesding iis wiilization, Profit afier 1ax for the curent year includes ¥ 3,770.5) Lakh (P.¥Y. 3.697.07 Lakh) rowards
inicrcst tamed on such bank ¢ pesils. Such inl rest income ing 1o ¥ 3.575.28 Lakh unt financial year 2012413, earlier credited 10 Development Account, was
transfared 10 Reserves & Surplus ia FY 201314, : :

Share Application Moncy Ponding Aloiment
{8). Company had opening balance of T 1.00,792. 88 Lakh of share applicaiion mancy received from Minisiey of Raibways, Company issued Equity shares a1 par in respect of
his oulstanding share application moncy on 13062014, : : :

(b). Company has closing balance of T 1,08,700.00 Lakh of share application money received from Ministry of Railwiys as on 3i.03.2018. 108,720,000 number of cquity
shares are required to be issued af par for said outsianding application masicy during FY 2015-16, The company has sufficient Auvihorized Share Capital 1o cover the
ailotment against such share application money received, There is 1o overdue amount of share application moncy pending allotment as on 31.01.2015. - ’

Long Term Borrewings ' . . Amownt in (¥ Lakh)
Earticulars : . As at March 31, 2675 As at March 31, 2014
Tere Losas From Others

Unseeured Loan .

Loan from Ministry of Raidways for EAPf HCA Projects (Loan from Minisiry of Railway For

Extersal Aided Project.) JICA - 205 . 11.645.5 1hel41s
Loan from Ministry of Raitways for EAPY HNCA Projects {Loan from Ministry of Railwsy For - ) .
Externat Aided Projecr) JICA - 209 ° ‘ : ?3.15385 $1.972.53
Loan from Ministry of Railways for EAP/ JICA Projecis (Loan from Ministry of Railway For .

Externat Aided Frojeat) JICA - 212 _ 6.480.99 3.006.48
Loan from Ministry of Railways for EAPABRD Prajects - 066 . 52.665.53 25.268.96
Loan from Ministry of Railways for EAPIBRD Projects - 8318 156.59 L .
Tntfl - : £44,108,49 i 99,6621

o



7 Other Long Term Liabifities*

N

6.1 Termsof Repayment (EAPIICA LOAN)

Loan by CA is being piven 1o Minisiry of Raibwayy as Extemaliy Arded
DFCCIL a5 2 Loan on the same 12oms and condiions As por clanficano
toan is 40 years, rai¢ of inlorest is TV
50 years. This interest will accrue on si

components of Gross Budgenary Suppont (GBS) theongh Minssuy of Fuiance Tha iy passed on 1o
it recerved fiomn MOR vide teitet sonbes 2000 Inkaf3 1120 -t -dated 06/020201% the 1onuee of
and mocatorian peviod is 10 years. The actemulated interess secrsed dunaing the peripd of morataun o payable afiet complerion of
nple interest basis. There is no principal repayment as she Cabinet has approved that the Joan wdl be passed o MoR as GRS

6.2 Termsaof Repryment (EAPHBRD LOAN) -

The Govermnent of India {GOY) thiough the Minmstry of Finanee has enteied into 3 Loan Agrecment dated: 27/HO2201E 1o avasd 2 loan of USD 935 Mitkion with the

Intemationat Bank for R uction and Devclopmen {IBRD) which shall be utilized 1owards Instittional Developmen Activities and desipn. construction and
commissioning of 343 Kms of double 1rack electrificd railway on the Khutja-Bhaupur section of the Eastern Dedicared Freighs Comidor (EDFC).

In 1erms of the Loan Agreement, DFCCIL has been identified as the Project hmplementing Entity. DFCCIL has also entered into 3 Project Apveement with the Bank for
inplementation of project. Funher, 1o facilitate the carrying ot of the project by DECCIL. GO theough the MoR i3 required 10 inake the proceeds of the Loan available 1o
DFCCIL by way of MOR Loon under a Subsidiary Loan Agreement between the GOT hrough MoR and DFCCIL, under terms and condirions satisfactory 10 the Bank,

The OFCCIL through the Ministry of Finance has enered into another Loan Agreement with 1he IBRD dased | 171272014 1o avail 3 taan of USD 1100 Milkion. This foan
shall be vtilized towsrds Inuinnional Development Activities and desipn, construction and commissioning of 393 Kms of double track elecerified railway on the Kanpur-

Mughal Sarai section of the EDFC, In this aggeemen the Govermment of Indis [GON has piven Sovorcipn Guaranice troagh the Ministry of Finance, According 1o this
Bgreement, the loan proceeds shall be directly available 10 DFE CiL, )

The repayment of Loan atong with interest will be made by DFCCIL 1o MOR in Rupee eqivalent of the USD Loanfinierest amount,

63 Principal Repayment Terms & Detajls:

Loin Commencement of Repayment Term Repdyment Pesiod
Repayment !
IBRD Loan {EDFC) - 8066 - - From Nov. 2018 Half yearly In 30 Instalhinents
- IBRD Loan (EDFCY - 8318 : From May 2021 Hall yearly T instaliments

Amount in {7 Lakh}

Particulars : : . As a1 March X1, 2015 Az 3t March 31,2014
Trade payables - -
Othens . !

(i} Interest acesued but not due on Loan fom MoR on EAPJICA 8.574.74 2,807.16
(i) Deposits! Retention money (Reccived Fom Supplier & Service Providers) 8.562.62 - T557%
liii} Jncome Received in Advance . T 18990 . 171.87
{iv} Advance received from customers apainst Deposit Work 5,563.52 . . 5.561.52
Total - - 12,B88.80 i $.296.30

* Disclosure requirement under section 22 of The Micro, Smalf and Medium En prises Develop A1, 2006 is priven in Note No, %3,

B Loag Term Provisions

Amguut in (T Lakh)

Particulary As 31 March 31, 2018 A3 31 March 31,2014
{A) Provision for Employee Bencfits '
Gratwiry : 205,20 104.75
Leave Encashment 263,36 144.50
Leave Traved Concession £9.04 76,53
AB) Other Provisions = -
Totat {AYH{B) 557,60 ] 32578
3

9
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* Provisson for granry liabiliry for the penod has been made a3 pet Achanal V

Following;

Chanpe in present value of ebligation:

ployees on separation from rhe corporation. The
per Paymem of Grawity act, 1972, There i % vesting period of § years on e benefi

A secontiliaion of spening & closing

aluation as on 31-03-201 5

mont of prasity payable is based on past service and salary at the tine of SCPAAHON as

Balances of the present vaiue of the fetrement benefis {Graswiry) obligation and ihe efTects during the year atiibutable to cach are the

Ansount in {§ Lakhf

Pariicviary At at March 39, 1815 As st March 31,2614

Opening Balance 1049.91 ) 1594
Imerest Cost 9234 2.08
Current service cou 6186 kYR
Benefit paid - -

Acruanial (Gain) Loss on obligation 30.25 $4.4)
Closing Balance 21338 109,94

Espenses recognized:

Aweved i (T Lakh}

Paniculars = AS M March 3 215 As 8t March 33, 2044

Interest Cost ®.34 208
Current service cost 63.86 3731
Actuarisl {Gainy Lost on obligation 30,25 44 61
Expenses recopnized snd Srans ferred 19 Development Actcount 103,45 84.00

Movement in lh:_liahilify' vecognized in the Balaner sheet: ..

Amsint in (T Lakh)

Farticulary

As st Mareh 31,2015

Asat March 31, 2014

Opening nct Hability 10593 - 25.94
Expentes as sbove 103.45 84.00
Beneht Paid - -
Actual retorn oa plan asscts - -
Acguisition adjustment - -
Closing net Yisbility . 21138 109.94
Recopnized 23 woders

Leng Term Provision 20520 104,75
Short Tenn Provision £l9 548
Total 11338 109,94

Actoarisl Assumptions:

Yerrcoded March 31, 7015

Year ended March 31, 1004

Method OF Valustion ; Project Unit Credit Method Project Unit Credit Method
Discount Rate ; 3.00% 3.30%
Zalary Escalation Rute: 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality raze EALM (2006-08) IALM {2006-08}

Y

Bronslien
il
T

5%
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b)) Lesve Encashment:

Provision for leave cncashiment babitin fo1 the peniod has been inade as prr Actuatial Valuanon as oo 31.03.201%,

Emplayees ate antitled 10 encashment of eamed Jeaves subyect 1o cenain Finits and oihes condwions specified for the same

A reconaiztion of opening & closing Balances of the present value of obbgation and the cffects during theyear atteibuniable 10 each arc the

Changein present value of obligation:

following:

Amonn) in {7 Loakh)

Particulsny As at March 31, 2015 As al March 3i, 2048
Opening Batance te0 0o 2661
Acquuinon Adjustinem 12,24 .
Interest Cost 12.8¢ 213
Current service cost HET.BG 7394
Benefi paid {23.0m A9
Aciuasial {Gain) Loss on vbligation 2.2} 3248
Closing Brlange 286,94 160,09

Expentes recopnized:

Particulrny -

Amgontin 1T Labh)

As it March 312015 As at March 3§, 2014
Imerent Cont 12,51 13
Current service cost i 112,68 7394
Actuarial Loss / ¢Gzin) on cblipaion 2.2 5148
Enpenses recopnized and transferred to Development Account 13268 128.58

Movement in the Rability recognized in the Balance sheer:

T Amount in {T Lakh}

Particulars As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014
Opening net hability 1450.09 26 61
Expenses a8 sbove - 132,68 128,35
Boenclit Paig {23.07M) 493
Aciual teturn on plan asseis - -
Acquisition sgjuslmcnt_ 17.24 .
Ctlosing net Habitity 186.94 160,09
Recopniacd 23 vnder:

Long Term Provision 261.36 144,50
Shon Term Provision 2358 15.59
Totxt 256,94 160,09

Acrtvadsl Assumptions:

Year ended Marvch 31, 2025 Yexr ended March 31,2004
Method Of Yailuation : Project Uit Credit Method Project Unit Credit Mcthod
Discount Rate ; 5.00% 3.50%
Salary Excalarion Rate: 6.00% 4.00%
Moriality rare IALM (2006-08) TALM (2006-08)
Q X
. i

C1 3+
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¢} Leave Travel Concassion:

Provision for fcave travel concession for the period has been made as Pes Actanial Valuatson s on 31.03-201 5

Employees are entisled 10 deave iavel concession subjeci 10 cerain limits and pther conditions speeafied for the sane.

A teconciliation of opening & chosing Balances of the presemt value of obligation and the effecis during the yeas

Change in presont valuc of obligation:

anrshuable 10 each ae the Following

Amonntin {T Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2014 As 2 March 31,2084
Opening Balance 68 ) -
Interest Cost 637 .
Current sexvice cost 3324 I9.68
Benelis paid {4.83) .
Acruarial (Grin) Loss on ob}iga:ion {42.74) .
Closing Balance 91.12 75.68
Expenses recognized: Amount in [T Lakh}
Particulary AsatMarch 38, 2015 As 3t March 31, 2014
Inlerest Cost &7 -
Currenst service cost - 53H . : 79.68
Actuaria) Eoss ¢ (Gain) on obigation (42.74) - -
Expenses recopnized and frafasftrrtd‘lo Development Account 17.27 19,68

Movement iss the Hability recopnized in the Balpnce sheet;

Amount in {T Lakh}

Pgniculzm Asat March 35, 2015 As ol March 31 1014
Opening net Habikity . 79.68 ) o -
Expenses us above 30X ] 79.68
Benchit Paid (4.83) .
Actual resurn on plan assas - -
Acquisition adiustiment - -
Closing net liabiliry 9211 19.68
Recognized as under:

Long Term Provision B9.04 16.53
Short Tesmn Provision LEH ] s
Totsl 92,12 19,68

Artuariat Assurnptions:

Year ended March 31, 2018

Yesr ended March 33, 2004

Method OFf Valuation : Project Unit Credit Mahod Project Unit Credit Mathod
Discount Rate : 3.00% - 2.50%

.|Salary Excalation Rae: 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality rare TALM (2006-08) TALM (2006-08)

b
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Other Current Liabitities

Amannd in T Lakb}

Particuinr As at March 31, 2018 Asa) March M, 2014
{i} Earnest Money Deposi 138 24 305
{#) Advance for Land (Pending for nansfer o SL.AO Ax) 38270 4178 7%
{13) Advance teceived FFom customers againgt Deposit Work . 648 6,48
{iv} Duties & Taxes Payable 2.437.0% 1.952 24
T {v) Othars Payables 31355158 10,963 95
(vi} Il)cpqsiw' Retention money (Recsived om Suppbier & Service 103378 72418
Providers)
{vif) Incoinet received in Advance 558 b 20
{vili) Funds received from MOR pending adjusiiners 2.39% 10 .
{ix} Interest acerved but not due on Loan from MoR on 1BRD K647 5855
Total 41,258.49 18,20%.40

Disclosure requirerpent under sccrion 22 of The Micso, Smalt 2nd Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is given in Note No, 33,

Short Term Provisions - Amonnt in {T Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,1015 Asat March 31,2014
{A) Provision for Employee Bencfity
Gratvity 319 518
Leave Encashment 25,58 15.59
Leave Travel Concession. 308 114
(B} Other Provisions s Co .
) Income Tax (Net of TDS & Advance Tan) 1,84 65.77
Total (AYHE) 36.69 89.48

Pravision for Income tax has been made in respect of Income from Interest on Fixed Deposits and Se
Imerest en Mobilization Advance given 10 Comtracion, Liquidared damages
recavered as the same has boen considered as Capital Receipts. No adjustmen
sage.

rvice Charges recovared. However no provision kas been wmade on
{LDA} recovered, Interest on Advance Consumption Depasit, D&G and Supervision charges
1 has been made for deferred 1axes on income as per A3 22 as the Cowpany is in construction:

4
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‘JEIDECATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR-CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

N
>ies 1o the Financial statements
12 Long Term Loans & Advances 4 : Amountin (¥ Lakh)
Particulars “As at March 31,2015 Asat March 31,2014
A. Capital Advance
a) Secured Considered Good
i. Mobilisation Advance |
(Secured against hypothecation of Plant & Machinery in 3.734.84 4,180.52
favour of DFCCIL) . .
b} Unsecured Considered Good )
i. Advance for Capital Works & Shifting of Utilities 180,923.44 152,899.61
ii. Mobilisation Advance 08,969.29 102,007.14
Total (A) T R 283,627.57 259,087.27
. B. Secarity Deposit
a} Unsecured Considered Good
i. Security Deposit-Electricity _ 3260 20.95
- 15, Security Deposit - Lease Rent 75,58 63.3]
iti. Security Deposit Against-Telephone & Others 1.37 1.30
iv. Security Deposit Against-Cutting of Trees : : 36.08 36.02
Total (B) e T | 145.63 121.58
(C) Others . .
Advance Income Tax & TDS ¥ 440.50 413.82
Total (C) ‘ . 440.50 413.82
Total (A+B+C) ' ' © o 284,213.70 259,622.67

# Advance Income Tax & TDS (Net of provision for income tax) for earlier years pending asessement/refund.

121 The Company has given advances 10 various-parties for various capital works and for shifting of utilities along the
- freight Comidors under construction. The total amount: of such advances (Note No. 12.A b} i} as on 31.03.2015 is ¥
1,80,923.44 Lakh (Previous Year T 1,52,899.61 Lakh). The works are under various stages of progress and the same

will be accounted for on compietion of respective works by the concemed parties.

i3 Cas!.l and Bank Balances ‘Amount in (T Lakh)

Particulars . As at March 31,2015  Asat March 31, 2014

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank Balances

"~ Current Accounts & Flexi : 17,046.45 13,728.60

- Deposit Accounts with maturity of 3 months or less - 66,000.00 76,000.00

_ Cheques in hand 2196 _ 4.10
(b) Other Bank Balances .

-- Fixed Deposit Accounts Pledged as Security : : 414,34 ' 329.41.

Total (a) + (b) _ s . 5 83,484.75 84,062.11




%
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14.1

i5

15.1

Bank Balances includes 3 3,382.70 Lakh (Previous Year3 4.175.92 Lakh) in Current Accounts & Flexi held on behalf
of Ministry of Railways.

Short Term Loans & Advances Amountin {7 Lakh)

h

Particulars Asat March 31,2015 As at March 31,2014

(a) Other Loans & Advances (Unsecured considered good)

(1) Employee advances ' 15.16 19.07
(#) Prepaid Expense 12.26 5.44
(i11) Service Tax Input Credit & Advance Paid 113.15 94.73
(iv) Security Deposit - NDMC © 1033 10.33
{v) Others 24995 278.11
Tota) 400.85 407.68

There is no advapce to directors outstanding as on 31.03.2015 (Previous year-NiL)

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Amountin (¥ Lakh)
Particulars AsatMarch 31,2015  As 2t March 31,2014
(a) Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit, Mobilization advances & Others
On Deposit Accounts with Banks : . 38539 727.89
On Mobilisation Advances 664.09 123.05
. OnAdvance Consumption Deposit ' 4543 -
(b) Expenditure on Land Acquisition -Recoverable from MOR 355.41 2,247.05
(c) Expenditure on Pets Survey -Recoverable from MOR 974.47 526.76
(d} Recoverable from Staff 338 16.92
(€) Recoverable from Contractors/Consulants 5.0 497.84
(f) Other Recoverable 228.60 356.93
(Represents Rent & Facility Management charges etc.
receivable on account of sub-lease) .
(g) Gold/Silver Medallian for Employees in hand 1.69 -
Total 2,663.56 4,496.44

Expenditure on Land Acquisition :

(a) As per the directions of Ministry of Railways (MOR), Land for the project shall be acquired in the name of MOR
under The Railways Act, 1989 as modified by The Railways (Amendment) Act, 2008 and the
leased to the Company at lease rent of 6% per ansum of the land cost. Lease rent shall commence from the date of
commissioning. Funds for acquisition of land are being provided by MOR to separate bank accounts, being operated
jointly by the State Land Acquisition Officer, being the Competent Authority under the above Act and a nominated
official of the Company. Such Bank Accounts do not form part of the Company’s accounts.

(b) In addition to the compensation payments for land acquisition, for which funds are given by MOR in separate
account as explained in (a} above, Company is incurring facilitation & administ

rative expenditure in connection with
acquisition of land, which are reimbursable by MOR on actual basis.

A}

land so acquired shall be
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© DEDICA TED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

‘Notes to the Financial statements

16 Other Income ‘ Amount in {3 Lakh)

Particolars Year ended Year ended
Marceh 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

{A) Interest Income

Interest on Flexi/FDR . 5,635.78 5,600.78

Total (A) . 5,635.78 5,600.78

((B) Other Non Operating Income - e x
Misc. Income 207 _ 10.72

Rent Recovery on Sub Lease (See note No. 16.1) . ' 499,17 462.70 -
Housekeeping Exp. Recovered from Sub-lessec 25.28 22.28
Office Security Exp. Recovered from Sub-] lessee : 40.60 40.20
Electricity Exp. Recovered from Sub-lessee 55.25 79.05
Office Repair & Maintenance Recovered from Sub-lessee < 0.05
Repair & Maintenance Exp. Recovered from Sub-lessee - 4.41
Annual Mamtenaucc Charges Recovered from Sub-lessee 14.75 828
Compos:te Rent & Facility Management Charges Received ' 182,35 ) 150.00
Total (B) 819.42 777.69

(C) Less : Direct expenses

Housekeeping Expenses 21,38 19.82
Rent. : 499.17 462.70
Composite Rent & Facility Managcmcm Exp : '141.9) ‘ 91.94
Office Security Expenses ' 34.33 3577
Electricity Exp. Office _ 46.74 70.33
‘Office Repair & Maintenance - : - - 0.04
Repair & Maintenance _ K - 3.92
_Annual Maintenance Charges., - . I 12.47 7.37
Total (C) ‘ 756.00 691.89
- (D) Net Other Non Operating Income [(B)-(C)] 63.42 _‘ 8-5.80
Net Other Income [ (A) + (D) } 5,699.20 5,686.58.
16.1 Sub Lease : . ' N

Sub Ecasc receivables recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year is T 499.17 Lakh

120
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17.1

17A

Employee Benelits Expense Amountin {3 Lakh)

“Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

. Salary, Wages & Allowances 6,028.39 5,213.07
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution 293.22 316,59
Gratuity, Contribution to PF & Pension Scheme (incl. 322.50 229.06
admin fee) .
Staff Welfare 356.00 396.07
Total 7,000.11 6,154.79
Less:Transferred 1o Development Account (Note 19 7,000.11 6,154.79
Balance (Transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss) ) - .
Disclosure Iin term of AS - 15 is as under ;

Defined Contribution Plan _ .
Contribution to defined contribution plen recognized as development expenses are as under;

" - Employer's Contribution to. Providemt Fund 199,80 132.20
Finance Cost Ameount in {¥ Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2015 March 31, 2014

Imerest Expenses on:

. EAP/JICA Loan 5,767.60 1,829.65
IBRD Loan 264.33 132.10
Interest on Income Tax 16,32 -
Upfront Fee 1,332.06 -
Other Borrowing Costs:

Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to . nterest cost 1.684.16 836.59
Total . : 9,064.47 2,798.34
Less:Transferred to Development Account (Note 15) 9,064.47 2,798.34

178B.

Balance (Transferred to Statement of Profit & Less)

_Note : For the purpose of the determining the: quantum of exchange difference to be regarded as interest cost in

compliance of para 4(e) of Accounting Standard 16 on Borrowing Cost, interest on local currency borrowings has

been tomputed @ 7%, being the interest rate at which borrowings to DFCCIL is availalbe from MOR.

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses -

Amount in {T Lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2015

Year ended
March 31,2014

Depreciation - EDP Assets

Depreciation - Office Equipment

Depreciation - Fumiture & Fixture

Depreciation - Leasehold Improvement

Depreciation - Leasehold Flat

Depreciation - Plant & Machinery

Total :
Less;Transferred to Development Account (h;lole 19
Balance (Transferred fo Statement of Profit & Loss)

90.49 124,57
157.72 4517
- (33.51) J8.50
57.28 47.77
- 5.33 5.33
0.06 -
277.37 261.34
277.37 261.34

s"‘ﬂﬁl



117 C Other Expenses

£ 3

Anuvent in (4 Lald)

Pariiculars

Year ended
March 31, 2015

Year ended
March 31, 2814

Advertisernent Expenses
Communication Expenses
Frinting & Stationary

Misc. Expenses

Books & Periodicals

Legal & Professional Charges
Directors Sitting Fee
Consultancy Fees 10 Consultants
Placement Consultancy Charges
Recruitment Expenses
Electricity Expenses

Power & Fuel

Housekeeping Expenses
Payment to Statutory Auditors *
Corporate Social Responsibility
Meeting & Conference

Rates & Taxes

Rent **

Tours ,Travels and Conveyance
Seminar & Training Expenses
Repair & Maintenance-others :
Annval Subscription Fees-IT Consultancy & Sofiware
Office Expenses

Hospitality Expenses

Office Security Expenses

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Interest on Duties & Taxes
Foreign Currency Expenditure

Total
Less:Transferred to Development Account (Note 19)
Balance (Transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss)

Payment to Statutory Auditors includes :
As Auditor :
Audit Fee
Tax Audit Fee
Reimbursement of Expenses .
Other Audit Fees (EDFC-] Audit)

Lease Rent

220.68 233.35
93,09 102.38
122.59 140.97
43.8] 52.94
2.41 3.32
104.25 81.51
2.02 6.14
127.83 184.79
260.95 291.25
393.07 92,65
83.18 33.05
7.3 3.86
303.15 180.52
13.79 8.55
32.27 . 19.03
43.96 46.57
102.04 76.61
1,324.94 1,058.10
1,659.96 1,410.24
230.95 464.46
86.98 66.76
1.94. 22.45
14.76 18.49
13.22 15.22
68.32 48.46

- 0.49

2.37 0.64
2.25 35.74
5,361.91 4,698.64
5,361.91 4,698.64
9.22 4.49
2.19 2.25
0.45 0.82
1.93 0.99
13.79. 8.55

The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases of premises for offices &
guesthouses. These leasing arrapgements, which are not non-cancellable, are usually renewable on mutually
agreeable terms. Lease payments in respect of premises for offices; guest house are shown in Rent.

Lease payments recopnised in the accounts for the year 2014-15 is T 1324.94 Lakh (Previous year ¥ 1,058.10 Lakh)

o
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"DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

Notes to the Financial statements

318 Prior Period Adjustment Amount in {¥ Lakh)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
th March 31,2015  March 31, 2014

Consultancy Charges : - 793 (15.92)
Meeting Exp. - 0.78
Electricity Exp. 0.29 25.20
Vehicle Hiring Charges 414 1.6}
Misc. Prior Period Adjustments ' R : '2.94 -
Placement Consultancy Exp. . 22.83 19.68
Recruitment Exp. ' ' - . ‘ " 9.14
TAMDA Exp. 1.63 1.32
Annual Subscription Fee - 0.92
Seminar & Training Exp. (29.45) 18.42
Professional Charges 431 (68.64)
Salary, Wages & Allowances ‘ (1.03) (9.90)
Foreign Service Contribution 12.99 -
Security Charges ' ' 097 -
Guest House Rent 1.48 -
Lease Rent (0 89) -
Interest on Loan (4 63) -
Interest on Consumption Deposit o (16.23) -
Total : 6.34 (17.39)
Less:Transferred to Development Account (Note 19) 6.34 (17.39)

Balance (Transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss)




‘DICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF IND]A LIMITED

tes to the Financial statements

19

Development Account {Pending Capitalisation)

bl

Amount in {¥ Lakh)

Particulars

Year ended

Note No yaroh 31, 2015

Year ended
March 31, 2014

Employee Benefit expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortization expense .
~ Other expenses
Prior Period Adjustment

Total (A)

"ess:

Liquidated Damage (LDA)
Interest on Mobilization Advance -
Interest on Advance Consumption Deposit
Cash Discount from Conttractors
Profit an Sale of Fixed Assets
Foreign Currency Fluctuation Gain //(Loss)
D&G and Supervision Charges received

~ Security Deposit/EMD Forfieted

Sale of Tender

Total (B)

" Net Expenditure (A-B)
Profit Tfansferred From Statement of Profit And Loss

Total Transferred To Capital Work In Progress

17
17 A
178
17C
18

7.000.11 6,154.79
9,064.47 2,798.34
277.37 261.34
5361.91 4,698.64
6.34 (17.39)
21,710.20 13,895.72
302.67 14527
1,838.90 1,731.37
29.21 ]
233.95. )
32.21 .
209.62.- (269.95)
7.44 )
14.70 5.91
22.61 30.36
2,691.31 1,642.96
19,018.89 12,252.76
45.92 58.63
12,194.13

18,972.97
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20. .
a} Contingent Liabilities as on: - (X in Lakh)
Description Ason. As on
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Claims against the Company not 31,796.38 33,744.06
acknowledged as debts in respect of
Capital Works
Disputed Taxation Demands 705.87 27.82
Total 32,502.25 33,771.88

The above contingent labilities do not include contingent liabilities on account

of pending cases in respect of service matters & others where the amount cannot
be quantified.

¢

It is not practicable to disclose the uncertainties relating to any outflow.
dy

A number of cases are lying for adjudication at different forums pertaining to
land compensation. Since land acquisition is being done by the Company as a
facilitator for Ministry of Railways, company is not subject to any liability that
may arise pursuant to the decision of aforesaid adjudicating authorities '

21, Capital Commitments:

~ Estimated zimoum of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital account and
not provided for ¥ 10,00,720.72 Lakh (Previous Year T 10,47,156.99 Lakh).

21. Balances® shown under Material issped to contractors, claims recoverable,
advance for Capital Expenditure, Advances to Contractors, Recoverable/Payable
from/to MOR, Sundry Creditors and Deposits/Eamnest money from contractors

“are subject fo reconciliation/ confimation and respective  consequential
adjustments.

23. In the opinion of the management, the value of current assets, loans and advances

on realisation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value at
which these are stated in the Balance Sheet.

24. The effect of foreign exchange fluctuation during the period is as under:

‘ ® in Lakh)

Year ended | Year ended

March 31, March'B},

.. 2015 2014
(i) | Amount charged to Development account 1684.16 -836.59
_{as Borrowing Cost , -
(i) | Amount charged fo Development account (209.62) - 269.95
as FERV ' -

-
b
g




25. The amount of borrowing cost capitalised by transfer to ‘Development Account’
(including prior period items) during the current year is ¥ 9,043.52 Lakh (Prevxous

year — < 2,798.

34 Lakh).

Y

26, During the financial year ended 31.03.2015, following Significant Accounting

Policies have been reworded / modified / introduced:

Significant

Description Impact on' Accounts
Accounting
Policy
Policy No. | Policy has been | No Impact.
21 & 2.2 . -r‘euforded/amcndcd to have better ' :
disclosure.. -
Policy No. i. Policy for charging of | Depreciation for the current
2.5(b) depreciation” has  been | year has increased by ¥ 82.56
= modified from WDV 1o SLM. | | akh. Further due to change
ii. Policy is reworded in view of | . .
the requirements of Schedule in method Of, depreciaton
I of the Companies Act, from retrospective (:ffec;, the
2013 : depreciation has decreased by
¥ 255.05-Lakh for the period
prior 10 FY 2014-15 which
has been reversed during the
current  year. Amount of
assets having Nil life as on
01.04.2014 charged” as
depreciation T 214.31 Lakh:
Policy = No. | Policy has been | No Impact
2.5(e) - reworded/amended to include]
\ reference of Compamcs Act, |
-2013

27. The Company is in construction stage for work relating to Eastern Section and
Western Section of Dedicated Freight Corridor Project. Operation has yet not been
started and no operational income has been earned during the year hence Statement

'of Profit & Loss is being drawn only for non-operational income i.e. Interest on Bank

deposits & Service chargcs income on Facxhty Management Services provided on
sub-lease.
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In view of above provisions of Accounting Standard - 17 on Segment Reporting are
not applicable.

28. In compliance of Accounting Standard ~ 18 on related party disclosures, the required

mnformation 1s given as under: -

a) Key Management Personnel

Shri Adesh Sharma Managing Director w.e.f. 20.10.2014
Shri R.K.Gupta Managing Director up to 28.07.2014
Shri H.D. Gujrati Director (OPR & BD)

Shri Anshuman Sharma Director (PP)

Shri M. K. Mittal Director (Finance)

Shri D.S.Rana Director (INFRA) w.ef. 27.10.2014

Smt. Meenu Kapoor Company Secretary

b) Transactions carried out with the related parties is as follows:

Remuneration to key manag}:‘ment personnel 1s T 136.32 Lakh (Previous year ¥
120.49 Lakh) and amount of dues outstanding to the Company as on 31.03.2015 is
Nil (Previous year — Nil).

29. Eamings per Share:-

The elements considered for calculation of Eamings Per Share (Basic and Diluted)
are as under:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2015 | March 31, 2014
Net Profit after Tax used as numerator 3,770.53 3,697.07
X in Lakh) '
Weighted Average number of equity
shares used as denominator
— Basic 3,51,40,830 2,65,07,665
— Diluted - 3,71,86,469 2,65,35,279
Eamnings Per Share (%) — Basic 10.73 13.95
oo = Diluted 10.14 13.93
Face value per share ) 1,000 1,000
30. In accordance with Accounting Standard — 29, particulars of provisions are as
under: ) - :
: X In Lakh)
Particnlars Gratuity YLeave Leave Income Tax
Encashment'| Travel
Concession
| Opening Balance 109.93 160.09 79.68 6517
Additions during the year 103.45 149.92 17.27 1,914.25
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32.

Amount used/incurred : - 23.07 4.83 ! ,973.36
Unused amount reversed ' - - _ . 4.82
Closing Balan_{:e 213.38 286.94 92.12 1.84
Income / Expenditure in Foreign Currency
(X In Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,_ 2015 March 31, 2014
Income: Nil Nil
Exp.enditurc: |
Interest . 264.32 132.10
Professional & Consultation Fee 5,611.34 2.263.96
Others 8,256.08 .. 258.30

The Board of Directors approved a sum of ¥ 58.00 Lakh to be incurréd for

E

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) during the year 2014-15. During the year,
company has incurred ¥ 32.27 Lakh on CSR activities.

@ in Lakh)
Particulars - In Cash | Yet to be Paid Total
- in Cash -
Construction/Acquisitionof '}  5.12 13.507 . 18.62
any asset ' '
On purpose other than above 9,94 | 3.71 13.65
Total ' - 15.06 17.21 32.27

. Disclosure as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Devéiobment Act, 2006 is as follows:~ - (X in Lakh)

Sr. | . Particulars Year ended | Year ended

No. March 31, March 31,

. . 2615 2014

(i) | Principal amount remaining unpaid to Micro, small NIL -} NIL
& medium enterprise. o L

(i) |Interest accrued on principal amount remaining NIL NIL
unpaid as (i) above o o

(i31) | Amount of Interest paid during the FY along with NiL NIL
the payment of principal amount made beyond 15 :
days or agreed time from the date of
delivery/rendering of services. '

(iv) | Interest due but yet to be paid on principal paid NIL NIL
during the FY : . i

(v) | Amount of further interest remaining due and NIL NIL




payable even in the succeeding period, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actuaily
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as deductible expenditure.

34. The figures in the financial staiemems have been rounded off to * Lakh. Previous

year figures / Opening balances have been regrouped/re-ananged/re cast wherever
necessary.

These are the Notes referred to in our report of even date..

. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Adesh Sharma) _ (M.%.Mit{al)

For M/-s'l-laweja_& Kaul
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Nﬂ.ﬂO5834N

Managing Director Director Finance

! ‘e e DIN-7022393 DIN-2889021
CA Dalip X Kaul ' ‘ '
Partner
M.No. 083066 —

‘ (Meenu Kapoor)
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi ACS-18954

Date : ?,0‘ OG'] ‘2,0“_\'—‘
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BAWEJA & Kal)
Chanered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dedicated Freight Corrider Corporation of

India Limited (“The Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2015, the Statement of

Profit and Loss, the Cash flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
- policies and other explanatory information. ; A '

Management’s Résponsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters staled in Section 134 (5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
1o the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Anuditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to éxpress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the Accounting and Auditing Standards and matters which are required
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted owr audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143 (10) of the
_Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the anditor considers intemal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order 1o design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company
has in place an adequate internal financial contro} system over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Dire tors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

. . B <
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BAWEJA & KAUL

Chariered Accounianis

We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficiem and appropriale o provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opioion

1. Bankers have deducted Tax at Source {TDS) on Interest received én Land Bank Accounts (SLAQ). These
- accounts do not periain 1o the company, however the company has wrongly recognized the TDS on these

accounts as ils current asset and correspondingly shown as payable 1o Ministry of Railways. Accordingly
the current assets and current liabilities are overstated by Rs 10018560/~

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the eiplanations given 10 us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis - for Qualified Opinion pamgmph the financiol statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted-in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015
and its Profit and its Cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Maiter

We draw attention to the following:

1. Note No 22 wherein, it has been Stated that the Balances shown under Material issued to Contractors,
Claims recoverable, Advance for Capital Expenditure, Advances to Contraclors, Recoverable/Payable
from/to Ministry of Railways, Sundry Creditors and Deposits/Earnest Money from Contractors are
subject 10 Reconciliasion/Confirmation and respective consequential adjustments.

2. The company receives composite fund for issue of Equity and towards EAP from the Ministry of
/" Railways. The company has not bifurcated the funds into Equity component and EAP component on the
date of receipt and has not transferred the funds received for Equity component to Share Application
Money Pending Allotment on the date of receipt. The EAP component is converted into loan compoenent
whenever payment is made 1o Controller of Aid, Accounts and Audit (CAAA) for onward payments to
contractors. The company transfers the residual balance lying at the year end in Funds Received towards
Equity and EAP from Ministry of Railway Account to Share Application Money pending allotment.

3.- Note No. 11(6) The Company has changed its Accounting Policy in respect of depreciation on fixed
assets. The Company was charging depreciation on written down value method as laid down in schedule
X1V of the companies Act, 1956 till March 31, 2014 and has shified to Straight Line method as laid
down in Schedule H to the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 1, 2014. This change in
Accounting Policy with respect to Method of charging depreciation has resulted in reversal of

- depreciation due 1y change in method from WDV to SLM Rs 255.05 Lakh and charge for assets having
Nil life as on 01.04.2014 Rs 214.31 Lakhs.

~ Qur opinion is not modified in respect of matters stated under Emphasis of Matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“The Order”) issued by the Central

. Government of Ir-dia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1,2 -

statement on the ratters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the exte pt applicable.

§az



BAWEIA & K4UL

Chariered Accotentanis

2. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to be examined in
terms of sub section (5) of Section 143 of the Companies Act 2013, the compliance of which is set out
in Annexure 2.

L

The Company has not complied with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 with respect 1o
appointment of Independent directors & Women director as per section 149 of the Act. Due to non-
compliance, the composition of Audit commitiee of the Board, composition of Corporate Social
" Responsibility of the Board and Nomination and Remuneration committée is not in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 read with rules framed thereunder, from time to time.

4. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained al} the information and explanallons which to-the best of our knowled ge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company $0 far as
1t appears from our examination of those books; ‘

{c) The Balance Sheet the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Fiow Statement dealt wnh by this’
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the ‘aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounﬁng Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.Except for
the effect of matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the Balance Sheet, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting Standards
Specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounis) Rules, 2014;

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31,03.2015 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31.03.2015 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013; and

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations' given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements. Refer Note 20 to the financial stalements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable }osses on 1ong—tenn contracts including derivative contracts,

1. "The provision of lransfemng the amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund is not
applicable to the company.

For BAWEJA & KAUL
Chariered Accountants
FRN: 005834N

TS e 1 =

CA DalipK Kaul
Partner
M.No. : 083066

Place : New Delhi :
Dated: SoloG| 201y
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iv.

vi.

vii,

BAWEI4 & KAUL

Chartered Accovnrants

Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report referred foin paragraph 1 under *Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ scction of our repori of even date

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assets are venfied in phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this program
certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such

verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and the nature of its asseats.

The company has been incorporated for running and maintaining dedicated freight corridor. Since
the railway freight corridors are under construction, it does not hold any physical inventories.
Thus, paragraph 3(ii} of the Order is not applicable. '

The Company has not granted any Joans, secured or unsecured 1o the companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In view of
this, sub clauses (2) and (b) of clause {iii} of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and exﬁlanaﬁons given to us, the internal control
system is generally adequate and commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its
business for the purchase of fixed assets. The activities of the company do not involve purchase of

inventory and the sale of goods. We have not come across any continuing fajlure to correct major
weaknesses in internal control system,

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

As per information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Comranies

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 requiring maintenance of Cost
Records is not applicable to the company. .

(a). According to the information and explanations given 10 us and on the basis of our examinat.on of
the records of the company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of accounts in respact of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs , duty of excise, Value added tax, cess and any other material

statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company, with the
appropriate authorities.

According fo the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of
customs , duty of excise, Value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrear
as on 31 March 2015 for a period of moré than six months from the date they became payable except
amount of Rs 22012/- in respect of Provident Fund which was paid on 20/5/2015.

(b) According to.lhe information and explanations given to us, fo]lov.;ing amounts payable in respect
of income tax, as at 31" March, 2015 have not been deposited on account of dispute:

Name of the Statute Nature of | Amount in Period to Forum where
Bu Rs. which dispute is
es (Figures are the pending

in amount
Crores) relates -
: Income-tax
Income Tax Adt, Income Appellate
1961 Tax| O 201112 Tribunal
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Chariered Accounicnls

{ ©) According 10 the information and explanations given to us, no amount is required to he
transferred 1o the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) in accordance with the relevant
provisions of section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 {1 of 1956) and Rules made there under read
with the IEPF (Awareness and protection of investors), rules , 2001

"~ vii.The Company does not have any accomulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not
' incurred cash Josses in the financial year covered by our auc*it= and in the immediately preceding
financial year,

ix. Based on our audit procedures and according to the informalion and explanations given to us, we are
of the opinion that the Company has not defaulied in repayment of dues {o financial institutions.

x. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

xi. According 10 the information and explanations: given 1o-us and on the overal} examination of the
Balance Sheet of the Company, we report that the term loans have been applied for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

xii. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have nol come across any
instance of fraud on or by the Company, and according 1o information and explanation given to us, no
fraud was noticed or reported during the year under andit by the management.

For BAWEIJA & KAUL
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 005834N

T A e

CA Dalip K Kaul
Partner
M.No. : 083066

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 20 o6 2o1y”



BAWEJA & KAUL

Chartered Accounranis

Annexure 2 1o the Independent Auditor’s Report referved 1o in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date fo the member of Dedicated Freight Corridor
Corporation of India Limited for the financial year ended on 31* March 2015

These cases are pending for
hearing  /disposal at the
respective forums.

As  per  Management
expenditure on legal cases
is incurred  only  after

under contingent
liability in Note
no. 20, para (a)
to financial
statements ‘

S. QOur Report . Impact o0 Accounts and
' . . Action  Taken .
No Directions financial sfatements of
. Thereon
the Company

1 If the Company has beenj The Company was not | No action Not applicable

. selected for disinvestment, a| selected for disinvesiment required |

complete  status report in | during the financial year
terms of valuation of Assets| 2014-15.
{including intangible assets
and land) and Liabilities
(including  Committed and
General ‘Reserves) may be
examined including the mode
and  presemt stage of
disinvestment process

2 Please report whether there | According to information | No action Nil
are any cases of waiver/write | and explanations piven o] required
off of debts/loansfinterest | us, there are no cases of
etc.,, if yes, the reasons | waiverfwrite off of
therefor and the amount | debts/loans/interest etc.
involved.

3 Whether proper records are | The Company does not | No action Nil
maintained for inventories | maintain any inventory, the required
lying with third parties & | direction in this regard is
assets received 25 gift from | not applicable.

_Govi. or other authorities?

4 A rteport  on  age-wise | The age-wise anmalysis of | Company is of Nil
analysis of . pending | pending  legal/arbitration | the opinion that
legal/arbitration . cases | cases classification obtained | there would ‘be
including the reasons of | from the management is as | no probable
pendency and | under: outflow of
existence/effectiveness of a resources to

o . - "More than 3years: 2
monitonng mechanism for settle these
. Two to three years ; 1 . .
expenditure on al] legal cases . claims, as such
. Onetotwoyears: 0
(foreign and local} may be the amount
. Less than oneyear: 3 .
given. Total: 6 mvoned has
’ been shown
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BAWEJA & KAUL
Chartered Accowntants
S. Our
o ur Report Action  Taken Impacf on Accounts and
No | Directions financial statements of
Thereon
the Company
approval of the Competent
Authority The Company
has a system for monitoring
expenditure on lepal cases
(foreign and local)} which in
our view is effective,
For BAWEIA & KAUL

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 005834N

m‘-‘:u

CA DalipX Kaul
Partner

M.No. : 083066

Place ; New Delhi
Dated: 2o cﬁ] Yoy




